
 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 
West Plains Schools Board of Education 

Regular Session Meeting 
5:00 P.M.  May 15, 2012 

Central Administration Office 
 

AGENDA 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 

III. OPEN SESSION – for a motion to go into closed session 
IV. CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION 

A. Adjournment to Closed Executive Session  
1. Pursuant to Section 610.021.3 Personnel Matters  

B. Adjournment from Closed Executive Session 
V. CALL TO ORDER – The regular Session of the School Board meeting will be called to order at 

5:45 P.M.  
VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  - SWAT Students & Andy Ingalsbe 
VII. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
VIII. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA - Items considered routine in nature to be voted on in one motion to 

conserve time.  If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
will become the first item under the Regular Agenda  
A. Approval of Minutes From Special Meeting April 17, 2012 
B. Payment of Bills 
C. Monthly Finance Report 
D. Program Evaluations: 1. Early Childhood  
E. Approval Request for resignations or terminations: 1. Katia Viknyanskiy                                                           

                          t 
F. Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as recommended by the 

Superintendent of Schools:  Substitutes  
X. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only 
1. Salary Committee Proposal  
2. MSBA Policy 2012 A & B Updates – Final Read & Approval 
3. 2012-2013 Tuition Update 

B. New Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only  
1. Concession/Vending Contract  
2. Revenue Projections for 2012-2013 
3. Student Handbooks – 1st Read 
4. Employee Handbooks – 1st Read 
5. ZABC Field Turf Spec Approval  
6. Bus Driver Contract Renewal 
7. Superintendent Report 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
XII. ADJOURN TO ADDITIONAL CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION – this session is reserved to 

complete any unfinished business from the closed (executive) session from the beginning of the 
meeting.  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT - Next Board Meeting Scheduled for June 19, 2012 at 5:00 P.M. 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains R-7 Board of Education 
Board Election Results Meeting 

5:00 P.M.  April 17, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Jim Thompson called the meeting to order at 5:00. 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mr. Pace made a motion to approve the 

Agenda.  The motion seconded by Mr. Rhoads and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn 

Rhoads and Lee Freeman. 

NAY:  None.  

III. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Certify Election Results.  The April 3, 2012 election results were as 

follows:  Board members Jim Thompson (408) and Chuck Robson 

(318) ran for two positions on the board along with Brian Mitchell 

(374).  Mr. Riggs made a motion to certify the election results.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Freeman and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman. 

NAY:  None. 

B.  Dissolution of the Board of Education.  With the certification of the 

election results, the 2011-2012   Mr. Pace made a motion to dissolve 

Board of Education for 2010-2011.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 

Thompson and voted as follows; 

      AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

      Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman. 

NAY:  None. 

C. Oath of Office to Elected Members.  Board Secretary Linda Y. Collins 

administered the oath of office to new board member Brian Mitchell 

and returning board members Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, 

Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads and Lee Freeman. 

D. Elect Board President.  Mr. Riggs made a motion to nominate Jim 

Thompson as Board President.  The motion was seconded by Mrs. 

Tyree.  Mr. Freeman made a motion that nominations cease.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Rhoads.  The motion to nominate Jim 

Thompson as President was voted as follows:   

 AYE:  Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads, 

Lee Freeman and Brian Mitchell.    NAY:  None.  ABSTAIN:  Jim 

Thompson. 

E.  Elect Board Vice-President.  Mrs. Tyree made a motion to nominate 

Terry “Bo” Pace as Vice President.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 

Rhoads.  Mr. Freeman made a motion that nominations cease and this 

was seconded by Mr. Riggs.  The motion to nominate Terry “Bo” Pace 

as Vice-President was voted as follows: 

      AYE:  Jim Thompson, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads, 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

      Lee Freeman, Brian Mitchell.  NAY:  None.  ABSTAIN:  Terry “Bo” 

      Pace. 

F. Appoint Board Secretary and Board Treasurer (Currently Linda 

Collins and Luke Boyer).  Mr. Freeman made a motion to reappoint 

Linda Collins for Board Secretary and Dr. Luke Boyer as Board 

Treasurer.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Riggs and voted as 

follows:  

AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman, Brian Mitchell.   NAY:  None.  

G. Appoint MSBA Delegate and Alternate.  Mr. Rhoads made a motion 

to appoint Mrs. Cindy Tyree as MSBA Delegate and Mr. Sam Riggs 

as Alternate.  The motion was seconded and voted as follows: 

      AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

     Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman, Brian Mitchell.   NAY:  None.  

H. Appoint TIF Committee Member.  Mr. Rhoads made a motion to 

appoint Mr. Lee Freeman as TIF Committee member.  The motion 

was seconded and voted as follows: 

     AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

     Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman, Brian Mitchell.   NAY:  None.  

 

IV.  ADJOURNMENT:  At 5:11 Mr. Freeman made a motion to adjourn To 

Executive Session.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Pace and voted as 

follows: 

 AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

 Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman and Brian Mitchell. 

 NAY:  None.  

 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Jimmy E. Thompson, President 

 

 

_______________________ 

 Linda Y. Collins, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for May 15, 2012 At 5:00 P.M. 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains R-7 Board of Education 
Regular Session Meeting 

5:00 P.M. April 18, 20127, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Jim Thompson called the meeting to order at 5:53. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by 

Kelby Czerwonka. 

III. ROLL CALL:  Board members present:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” 

Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads, Lee Freeman and Brian 

Mitchell.  Absent:  None.  Also in attendance:  Superintendent Dr. Fred 

Czerwonka, Dr. John Mulford and Board Secretary Linda Y. Collins. 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mr. Riggs made a motion to approve the 

agenda as published.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Pace and voted as 

follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, 

Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None    

V. CONSENT AGENDA - (Items considered routine in nature to be voted 

on in one motion to conserve time.  If discussion is desired, that item will 

be removed from the Consent Agenda and will become the first item 

under the Regular Agenda  

A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes on March 27th , 2012 

B. Payment of Bills 

C. Monthly Finance Report 

D. Program Evaluations 

 Facilities, Buildings and Grounds 

E. Approval Request for Resignations or Terminations: 

 Larry Noller 

F. Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as 

recommended by the Superintendent of Schools: 

 Substitutes 

Mr. Pace made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 

was seconded by Mr. Rhoads and voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. 

Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None    

 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only 

1. MSBA Region 15 Spring Meeting Thursday, April 26
th

 at West 

Plains Middle School.   

2. Salary Committee Proposal.  This item was tabled for 

consideration in May. 

3. MSBA Policy 2012 Update - 2
nd

 Read: 2012B 1
st
 Read.  The 

updates will be approved in May.  

B.  New Business for Approval , Discussion or Information Only 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

1. Top 10% Banquet – April 23
rd

 5:30.  The Top 10% Banquet, 

sponsored by the Noon Rotary Club, will be held at the Civic 

Center in the Magnolia Room. 

2. Middle School Promotion, Civic Center, 7:00 pm Tuesday May 

8th.  Mr. Smith reported the students will wear graduation 

gowns. 

3. High School Graduation, Civic Center, 7:00 pm Thursday, May 

10th.  Project Graduation will be held at the Fairgrounds. 

4. Celebrations of Achievement – Wednesday May 2
nd

 4:00 HS 

Cafeteria.   

5. 2012-2013 Tuition.  Mr. Pace made a motion to set the 2012-2013 

tuition at $7,027.50.  The motion was seconded by Mrs. Tyree 

and voted as follows:   

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None. 

6. Superintendent Report.  Dr. Czerwonka reported several 

activities around the district that are intended to improve 

instruction for students. 

C.  Reports:  Review and Evaluation of Program and Process Update 

1.  Capital Projects 

a.  Summer Maintenance Projects 

Dr. Mulford requested approval of the following items for 

proposed summer projects: 

              Asphalt repair at West Plains Elementary $6,000 

   Seal and Stripe all parking lots $32,000 

   Replace carpet in Library and Office area at WPE $5,000 

   Painting in each building $8,000 

   Concrete repair in front of West Plains Elementary $7,000 

Repair landscaping at WPE and in courtyard at Middle School 

$7,000 

   Replace playground barriers at South Fork and WPE $15,000 

   Tennis court resurfacing $19,000 

   Science lab improvements at High School $100,000 

   Install kiln in Middle School Art room $3,300 

   Bathroom partition replacement at WPE - District labor 

   Add gravel drive from bottom of the hill on north side to 

   eliminate cars stopped on highway - $8,000 –also looking at 

   option to add asphalt to current parking lot to create a 

  turnaround for parent pickup and drop off.  - $20,000 estimate  

   Signage on front of SFE, soccer concession, and high school  

   Sign $4,000 

   Estimated total $214,300 - $234,300. 

 

Mrs. Tyree made a motion to approve the summer maintenance 

projects presented above.  The motion was seconded and voted 

as follows:  



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT:  At 6:57 Mr. Riggs made a motion to adjourn from 

Open Session to go immediately into Closed Session. The motion was 

seconded by Mr. Pace and voted as follows: AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. 

Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. 

Mitchell.  NAY:  None. 

 

At 7:12 p.m. Mr. Pace made a motion to adjourn Open Session.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Freeman and voted as follows:     AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. Freeman 

and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None. 

 

 

 

   

_______________________ 

Jimmy E. Thompson, President 

 

 

_______________________ 

 Linda Y. Collins, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for May 15, 2012 At 5:00 P.M. 



















This report includes the month of April. Printed On: 

Total Revenue

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2011 772,372 1,682,797 2,845,597 4,036,669 5,217,884 8,252,994 14,421,187 16,378,147 18,488,290 20,242,083 22,550,815 24,957,197

2012 707,688 1,843,125 2,833,081 4,074,470 6,369,706 8,492,224 14,985,280 17,037,516 19,211,405 21,297,031

Total Expenditures

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2011 552,113 1,429,373 3,356,441 5,556,335 7,390,174 9,543,852 11,448,988 13,635,476 15,804,712 17,695,559 19,534,175 24,989,463

2012 611,829 1,301,044 3,513,279 5,559,367 7,574,451 9,544,951 11,893,512 13,857,230 16,394,885 18,413,786

Revenues less Expenditures

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2011 220,259 253,424 ‐510,845 ‐1,519,666 ‐2,172,290 ‐1,290,858 2,972,199 2,742,671 2,683,578 2,546,524 3,016,640 ‐32,265

2012 95,860 542,081 ‐680,198 ‐1,484,897 ‐1,204,745 ‐1,052,726 3,091,768 3,180,286 2,816,520 2,883,245

Revenues vs. Expenditures
May 10, 2012

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

18,000,000

20,000,000

22,000,000

24,000,000

26,000,000

FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

12 Revenue

12 Expense

11 Revenue

11 Expense



This report includes the month of April. Printed On: 

Revenue as Compared to 2011
JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2012 ‐64,684 160,328 ‐12,516 37,801 1,151,823 239,231 564,093 659,369 723,115 1,054,948

**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year. 

Revenue by Source (2012 As Compared to 2011)
JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Local ‐2,420 134,051 153,157 94,452 45,336 ‐58,235 498,894 518,364 608,365 660,433
County 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ‐174,694 7,317 7,317
State 25,326 160,860 25,029 110,932 172,539 150,750 292,453 324,109 353,597 431,509
Federal ‐87,590 ‐137,150 ‐193,268 ‐170,149 ‐276,016 ‐702,847 ‐575,936 ‐407,779 ‐655,418 ‐429,871
Non‐Rev. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tuition 0 0 0 0 1,204,994 854,693 358,995 409,683 419,568 404,544
Total ‐64,684 157,761 ‐15,082 35,235 1,146,853 244,360 574,407 669,684 733,430 1,073,932

**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year. 

Revenue by Detailed Source [Independent Month (2012)

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN
Prop C 119,681 178,587 129,637 138,745 139,571 147,336 136,329 167,985 142,265 137,211 0 0

Basic Form. 503,690 530,748 348,392 600,803 537,362 512,325 584,119 544,866 544,853 530,572 0 0
Transpor 15,358 15,358 15,446 3,297 12,068 10,704 15,393 12,999 16,553 20,047 0 0

Clasrom Trust  22,211 90,159 47,832 66,887 51,786 73,328 62,601 57,500 73,216 75,625 0 0
Perkins‐Secndry 0 0 7,194 21,374 352 11,278 18,325 15,318 16,058 20,168 0 0
Perkns‐Pst Scndry 0 0 0 3,662 0 2,581 0 0 0 0 0 0

Part B 0 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 0 45,000 0 45,000 45,000 0 0
Lunches 5445 13,601 0 0 29,218 67,042 61,947 56,471 49,674 65,106 55,265 0 0
Breakfast 5446 7,298 0 0 7,780 19,249 17,702 16,206 14,110 18,850 15,844 0 0
Snack 5448 0 0 0 174 1,186 1,222 1,200 990 1,333 1,053 0 0

Title I 0 0 0 12,995 0 0 328,387 107,119 0 149,911 0 0
Title IIA 0 0 0 10,105 0 0 63,161 15,790 0 31,579 0 0

SPed Ed EC ARRA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5422 Jobs Bill 0 0 160,481 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5424 Jobs Bill 0 0 8,911 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue by Detailed Source (2012 As Compared to 2011)
JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Prop C ‐11,342 14,107 22,527 27,218 14,732 29,135 44,313 48,095 43,829 67,673
Basic Form. 24,591 165,558 19,145 152,054 222,934 240,320 281,632 249,457 212,105 190,604
Transpor 2,678 6,371 6,696 ‐880 ‐1,475 ‐3,210 ‐9,087 ‐23,088 ‐21,646 ‐17,038

Clasrom Trust  21,108 11,868 ‐650 ‐2,871 ‐11,726 4,897 3,423 3,467 2,582 15,389
Perkins‐Secndry 90 ‐15,282 ‐8,088 ‐16,632 ‐40,148 ‐31,114 ‐23,538 ‐23,942 ‐18,708 ‐8,637
Perkns‐Pst Scndry 0 0 0 3,662 3,662 6,243 6,243 6,243 6,243 6,243

Part B 0 45,000 45,500 60,500 60,500 15,500 9,925 ‐40,650 ‐46,225 ‐56,978
Lunches 5445 13,441 13,441 13,441 42,659 18,204 21,358 18,086 26,649 38,849 48,215
Breakfast 5446 7,298 7,298 7,298 15,078 8,349 9,121 8,099 10,721 15,544 19,101
Snack 5448 0 0 0 174 915 1,420 912 893 806 214

Title I 0 0 0 12,995 12,995 ‐267,005 ‐138,618 ‐31,499 ‐266,339 ‐116,429
Title IIA 0 0 0 10,105 10,105 ‐29,895 ‐6,734 9,055 ‐30,945 635

SPed Ed EC ARRA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5422 Jobs Bill 0 0 88,568 16,655 ‐55,258 ‐127,171 ‐127,171 ‐127,171 ‐127,171 ‐127,171
5424 Jobs Bill ‐87,933 ‐175,866 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955 ‐166,955

**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year.    Notice:  This chart only shows selected revenue sources. 

Revenue Report
May 10, 2012



This report includes the month of April. Printed On: 

**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year. 

Expenses as Compared to 2011

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN
2012 59,716 ‐128,329 156,838 3,032 184,277 1,099 444,524 221,754 590,173 718,227

**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year. 

Expense by Source (2012 As Compared to 2011)

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Fund 10 30,895 49,920 201,407 156,916 250,836 ‐5,891 332,256 362,871 371,158 400,858
Fund 20 22,514 22,688 44,112 33,128 34,323 21,603 34,255 10,666 31,892 39,970
Fund 40 ‐6,153 ‐72,118 ‐59,607 ‐166,038 ‐165,960 ‐115,624 ‐149,111 ‐124,135 ‐159,701 ‐160,034
Fund 60 4,132 29,960 39,930 43,104 102,292 110,736 142,986 134,895 162,488 218,305
Fund 65 ‐3,600 ‐3,176 830 1,221 2,539 2,694 5,459 2,152 ‐498 ‐886
Fund 70 5,334 13,002 24,772 31,360 37,996 44,499 51,001 57,503 71,353 72,946

Total 53,122 40,277 251,443 99,690 262,025 58,017 416,846 443,952 476,692 571,159
**This report shows differences between the current year, 2012, and last year. 

Expense Report
May 10, 2012

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2012 2011

Revenue Totals 
Per Month

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

2012 2011

Expenditure Totals 
Per Month



This report includes the month of April. Printed On: 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2011 Total 2012 2011 2011 Total61 $14 802 711 $15 021 944 $10 608 146 $10 566 118 $14 776 001 60 57% 61 77% 62 76%62 $4 049 181 $4 114 496 $3 005 747 $2 934 475 $4 082 495 17 16% 17 16% 17 34%63 $2 239 916 $2 145 104 $1 705 851 $1 375 434 $1 828 970 9 74% 8 04% 7 77%64 $2 260 016 $2 247 495 $1 863 584 $1 573 527 $1 995 554 10 64% 9 20% 8 48%$397 677 $400 677 $165 018 $327 633 $429 628 0 94% 1 92% 1 82%65 $394 677 $397 677 $165 018 $322 553 $429 628 0 94% 1 89% 1 82%66 $3 000 $3 000 $0 $5 080 $0 0 00% 0 03% 0 00%$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%$24 147 178 $24 330 392 $17 513 364 $17 104 820 $23 542 274 100 00% 100 0% 100 00%
2012 2011 2012 2011 2011 Total 2012 2011 2011 TotalLocal 51 $8 774 015 $7 540 861 $8 452 529 $7 792 096 $8 615 948 39 69% 38 49% 34 63%County 52 $275 000 $266 500 $289 248 $281 930 $281 258 1 36% 1 39% 1 13%State 53 $8 594 523 $8 158 253 $6 723 372 $6 291 864 $7 857 045 31 57% 31 08% 31 58%Federal 54 $3 040 102 $3 796 115 $2 386 023 $2 815 894 $4 374 666 11 20% 13 91% 17 59%Tuition 58 $3 635 000 $3 970 000 $3 445 860 $3 060 299 $3 748 280 16 18% 15 12% 15 07%

$24,318,640 $23,731,729 $21,297,031 $20,242,083 $24,877,198 100.00% 100.0% 100.00%

Professional

Expense

Through APR, 2011-2012 Through APR, 2010-2011 2011 End of Year

Through APR, 2011-2012 Through APR, 2010-2011 2011 End of Year

Revenue 

Other

Total

Facilities

Total 

Breakdown of Revenue & Expense
May 10, 2012

ProfessionalSalariesBenefitsServicesSupplies
FacilitiesFacilities

Salaries 
60.57%Benefits 

16.54%

Services 
9.08%

Supplies 
11.03%

Facilities  
2.98%

Salaries 
62.76%

Benefits 
14.78%

Services, 
6.65%

Supplies, 
7.62%

Facilities  
1.82%

Local 
39.69%

County, 
0.00%

State, 
31.57%

Federal, 
11.20%

Tuition 
16.18%

Local 
38.49%

County 
0.00%

State, 
31.08%

Federal, 
13.91%

Tuition 
15.12%

Local 
34.63%

County, 
1.13%State, 

31.58%

Federal, 
17.59%

Tuition 
15.07%

Salaries 
61.77%

Benefits 
15.90%

Services 
7.63%

Supplies 
9.18%

Facilities  
5.01%



West Plains R-VII Schools 

Program Evaluation 

 

Date:  May 7, 2012 

 

Program Title:  Early Childhood Programs 

 

Program Evaluation Committee Members: 

Dr. Fred Czerwonka – West Plains R-7 Superintendent          

            Dr. John Mulford – West Plains R-7 Asst. Superintendent  

            Dr. Julie Thompson – Curriculum Director 

            Shawn Rhoads – West Plains R-7 School Board Member 

            Karen Sholes – Director of Special Services 

 Dr. Brad Owings – West Plains Elementary School Principal  

 Seth Huddleston – South Fork Elementary School Principal 

            Lana Snodgrass – Director of Communications 

Kristi Drummond – West Plains Elementary School Nurse 

Michelle Miller – West Plains Elementary School Counselor 

Sue Meyer – Early Childhood Special Education Teacher 

Nancy Brown – Early Childhood Special Education Teacher 

Marcia Kantola – Early Childhood Speech Language Pathologist 

Karen Hunt – West Plains Elementary J.R. Kindergarten Teacher 

Kim Green – Little Zizzers Preschool Teacher 

Jackie Ingalsbe- South Fork Preschool Teacher 

Betsy Alaimo – West Plains Head Start Director 

Rayetta Beach – Head Start Training Center 

Pam Schutjer – Parent Educator 

Teri Self – Parent Educator 

Jennifer Randolph – WP Kindergarten Special Education 

Mist Rader– SF Preschool Parent 

Melissa Chitwood– SF Preschool Parent 

Ashley Harper – SF Preschool Parent 

Sandy Autry – ECSE Parent 

Melynni Yarber – ECSE Parent 

Erica Walker – Little Zizzer Preschool Parent 

Courtney Beykirch- Little Zizzer Preschool Parent 

Jennifer Palmer – Little Zizzer Preschool Parent 

Jennifer Skeeters – Little Zizzer Preschool Parent 

Jennifer Rhoads – Little Zizzer Preschool Parent 
 

Program Mission: 

 

 To provide the information, support, and encouragement parents need to help their 

children develop optimally during the crucial early years of life. 

 

 



 

Program Objectives: 

 

1. Provide opportunities to build a foundation for school success with children from birth to 

kindergarten entry. 

2. Increase parents’ knowledge of child development and their confidence in providing 

appropriate opportunities for all areas of their child’s growth. 

3. Develop an active partnership between parents and schools. 

4. Provide early intervention for potential learning problems. 

5. Coordinate with all early childhood programs in the area to expand services available to 

all families. 

6. Coordinate professional development opportunities with other early childhood educators 

in the area.   

 

Program Description: 

 

 Early childhood programs provide a high quality, developmentally appropriate program 

that promotes the physical, social, emotional, and cognitive development of young children 

while also responding to the needs of their families. Early childhood programs within the West 

Plains R-7 School District include Early Childhood Special Education, and Preschool. Staff in 

both programs work together to effectively meet the individual needs of young children. 

Preschool classes follow the Missouri Preschool Project model and serve students who 

turn four years old by August 1 of the program year. The program follows the Project Construct 

model curriculum which is recognized throughout the state of Missouri as being one of the best 

curriculums available for early childhood students. Children are encouraged to learn from their 

environment and work together to solve problems. Preschool is an outstanding way to help give 

all students the foundation they need to be successful throughout their educational experiences.  

Both preschool programs have received Missouri Accreditation Status.    

 

Additional Programs: 

 

Parents as Teachers is a voluntary early childhood parent education and family support 

program serving families throughout pregnancy until their child enters kindergarten. The 

program is based on the philosophy that parents are their children’s first and most influential 

teachers. Parents as Teachers provides parents with the information and support they need to 

give their child the best possible start in life. The program is designed to enhance child 

development and school achievement through parent education accessible to all families. The 

PAT program guidelines are based on the Early Childhood Development Act (Senate Bill 658). 

The four essential components of the program are personal visits, group meetings, screenings, 

and the resource referral network.  State Funding for this program was diminished several years 

ago.  This has resulted in this program not being active in the West Plains School District. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Program Evaluation Criteria: 

 

1. Opportunities for program participation will increase annually. 

2. Parental involvement in early childhood program activities will increase annually. 

3. Early identification of learning problems will increase annually. 

4. Attendance at professional development opportunities will increase annually. 

 

Collection of Data and Data Sources: 

 

Numbers of Participating Families 

Sign-In Sheets from Group Meetings  

Information from Formal and Informal Screenings and Observations 

Minutes, Agendas, and Sign-in Sheets from Advisory Committee Meetings 

Evaluations and Sign-in Sheets from Professional Development 

Parent Surveys/Interviews 

Preschool End-of-Year Report 

Early Childhood Special Education Yearly Report 

 

Program Strengths: 

 

1. Collaboration among all early childhood programs: Early Childhood Special Education, 

Preschool, Head Start, First Steps.  

2. Current research-based information on brain development incorporated into all early 

childhood programs. 

3. Building and fostering of a successful home/school relationship. 

4. Curriculum aligned with state standards in all programs. 

5. Preschool programs are accredited. 

6. Junior Kindergarten offered as an intervention. 

 

Program Concerns/Recommendations for Program Improvement: 

 

1. The lack of a Parents as Teachers Program is a huge detriment to the district and all other 

Early Childhood programs. 

 

2. Increase cost of the Little Zizzer Preschool Program had caused a decrease in availability,  

especially for low income families.  The South Fork Preschool has also seen a decrease in 

enrollment for next year due to a fee being charged for next year. 

 

3. Expansion of these programs can not considered until additional space is available at the   

Elementary and South Fork. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Program Recommendations (including action steps, person(s) responsible, and 

time frame for completion of recommendations): 
 

ACTION 

STEP 

 

PERSON(S) 

RESPONSIBL

E 

TIME FRAME 

FOR 

COMPLETION 

OUT- 

COME 

 

NEXT 

STEPS 
 

   
Create an 
Early Childhood 
programs  
information  
brochure listing  
services provided  
by the district. 
 

 
Elementary Principal 

Communications 

Director 
Early Childhood 

Staff 
 

 
2011-2012 
 school year 

On-going Communications 

Director will 

have this 

completed by 

Fall, 2012 

 
Work with Health 

Department to 

share Early 

Childhood 

information  
 

 

 
Early Childhood 

Staff 
Communications 

Director 

 
2011-2012  
school year 

On-going The new 

brochure will be 

distributed to 

this and other 

appropriate 

agencies. 

 
 Expand the Early 
Childhood Special  
Education  
Program and the  
preschool  
offerings in the     
West Plains  
Elementary  
School and South  
Fork Elementary. 
      

 

 
Elementary Principal 
South Fork Principal 

Early Childhood 

Staff 

 
2011-2012 

          school year 

 
On-going 

Conduct a needs 

assessment for 

West Plains to 

measure early 

childhood needs 

and resources. 
 

Communications 

Director will 

explore ways to 

make 

community 

aware of need 

for Early 

Childhood 

Education 
 

Additional  

space must be 

provided 

before 



programs can 

be expanded 

 

    . 

 
  Explore the 

feasibility of 

transportation for 

early childhood 

programs. 
 

 
Elementary Principal 
South Fork Principal 

Early Childhood 

Staff 
Transportation 

Director 

 
2011-2012  
school year 

This will not 

be possible 

until the 

district is able 

to purchase 

busses with a 

restraint 

system. 

 

Explore ways to 

bring back the 

PAT program. 

Elementary Principal 
PAT Staff 

2011-2012  
school year 

 
On-going 

Investigate 

possibility of 

developing a 

consortium with 

the rural schools 

to offer PAT 

services. 
Preschool 
programs should  
be District  
supported so  
there is no cost  
to the parent 

 
Elementary Principal 
South Fork Principal 
 

 
New Goal added for 

2012-2013 
 

 

  

 

 

Process for Disseminating Findings of Evaluation: 

 

1. Board Meetings 

2. Faculty Meetings 

3. Early Childhood Advisory Committee 

4. District Website 

5. Parent Teacher Conferences  

 

Communications Director will explore ways to make community aware of need for Early Childhood 

Education 

 

 

. 
 





Years of Creditable 

Service

BA in Educ. or 

other approved 

degree BA + 8 Sem. Hrs BA + 16 Sem. Hrs BA + 24 Sem. Hrs

Approved Master's 

degree M + 8 Sem. Hrs M + 16 Sem. Hrs M + 24 Sem. Hrs

Second 

Graduate 

Degree

1 30,000$        30,600$        31,212$        31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$  

2 30,600$        31,212$        31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$  

3 31,212$        31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$  

4 31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$  

5 32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$  

6 33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$  

7 33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$  

8 34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$  

9 35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        41,184$  

10 35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        42,007$  

11 36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        42,007$        42,847$  

12 37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        42,007$        42,847$        43,704$  

13 38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        42,007$        42,847$        43,704$        44,578$  

14 39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        42,007$        42,847$        43,704$        44,578$        45,470$  

15 41,184$        42,007$        42,847$        43,704$        44,578$        45,470$        46,379$  

16 42,847$        43,704$        44,578$        45,470$        46,379$        47,307$  

17 44,578$        45,470$        46,379$        47,307$        48,253$  

18 45,470$        46,379$        47,307$        48,253$        49,218$  

19 46,379$        47,307$        48,253$        49,218$        50,203$  

20 47,307$        48,253$        49,218$        50,203$        51,207$  

21 48,253$        49,218$        50,203$        51,207$        52,231$  

22 50,203$        51,207$        52,231$        53,275$  

23 52,231$        53,275$        54,341$  

24 54,341$        55,428$  

25 56,536$  

*Faculty members possesing a doctorate degree related to education or their specific content area will receive an 

additional $2000 stipend per year.

*In order to progress to the Masters +8, Masters + 16 or Masters +24 Column, a teacher must earn 8 graduate hours, 16 graduate hours  

or 24 graduate hours after they obtain their Masters Degree.

*In order to advance horizontally on the salary schedule, a teacher must have earned at least eight (8) hours of graduate level college credit in an  

approved area after being awarded a Bachelor's Degree.  



NON-DEGREED Vocational Instructor Salary Schedule

Years of Creditable 

Service  Temporary CAC Initial CAC

Associates Degree 

+ Initial CAC

Bachelor's Degree 

+ Initial CAC

1 30,000$        30,600$        31,212$        31,836$        

2 30,600$        31,212$        31,836$        32,473$        

3 31,212$        31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        

4 31,836$        32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        

5 32,473$        33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        

6 33,122$        33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        

7 33,785$        34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        

8 34,461$        35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        

9 35,150$        35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        

10 35,853$        36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        

11 36,570$        37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        

12 37,301$        38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        

13 38,047$        38,808$        39,584$        40,376$        

14 39,584$        40,376$        41,184$        

15 41,184$        42,007$        

16 42,847$        

*Upon completion of a Master's Degree, faculty will be transferred to the regualar Certificated Salary Schedule







































Handbook Changes for 2012-13 

 
This document contains hyperlinks.  

Click on an individual’s name to advance to their Board Report.    

 

A.       Elementary & South Fork 

B.       Middle School Student 

C.       Middle School Staff 

D.      High School Student 

E.     High School Teacher 

F. SCCC Secondary  

G.  SCCC Adult  

 

 

Click here to go back  

to the Meeting Agenda 



West Plains Middle School 

Proposed Handbook Changes 

2012-2013 School Year 
 

Page 8: MAP DAYS (RENAISSANCE DAYS) 

Students who scored at the Proficient or Advanced levels during MAP testing at West Plains 

Middle School or during 4th grade at West Plains Elementary or in 6
th

 grade at South Fork are 

eligible to receive a pre-arranged independent study day or MAP day.  Proficient scores receive 

one-half day and advanced scores receive one full day.  Parents are to call the MAP message line 

at 256-8697 before 9 a.m.  of the day that the student wishes to use the MAP day.  Monthly 

updated lists are kept outside the counselor’s office to check status or availability of days.  A 

student will be counted absent if the message line isn’t called before nine or if trying to use a day 

that has already been used.  MAP days may not be used during the yearly scheduled MAP testing 

time. 

Change: Correcting the phone number to now be 255-8697. 

Page 14: Absences  

  Your parent or guardian should call the school before 10:00 a.m. each day you are absent.  If no 

contact is made by this time the Attendance Officer will call those students not in attendance.  

Bring a note to the office the day you return.  You must check in at the office before 8:15. The 

office will be open beginning at 7:45 a.m. Absences with no parent note or contact may result in 

disciplinary action.  Notification letters will be mailed home after the 4
th 

and 6
th

 absence (per 

semester) from school. 

    Parents may request homework on the SECOND day a child is absent and on each following 

day.  If a child is absent just one day we request that the child pickup missed assignments the day 

they return. Requested homework may be picked up between 3:30 and 4:00. 

 Absences of less than a full day:  If you arrive at school after 8:20 a.m., report to the office to 

sign in. If you need to leave school during the day, your parent/guardian must sign you out.  You 

must sign an absence log the day following your absence. 

 Arrival at school:  The building will open at 7:30 at which time students should report to the 

FEMA building using the front doors by the office. Breakfast will be served in the cafeteria 

beginning at 7:30.   

     Students must attend classes for the entire day of an activity to be eligible to participate or 

attend an extracurricular and/or school event.  Students cannot participate if they are suspended. 

 

Change: Changing time from 8:20 to now read 8:10 a.m. 

Page 14: Perfect Attendance  

               Students present in every class each day from the first day of school until the awards 

assembly the last week of school will receive a special award, and their names will be placed on 

a list to be displayed in a prominent location in the school. Students signed out of school to 

attend the homecoming activities will be counted absent. Teachers will escort students to view 

the parade at all grade levels. 



West Plains Middle School 

Proposed Handbook Changes 

2012-2013 School Year 
  

Change: Removing entire paragraph as this is listed twice in handbook. 

 

Page 17: Food and Drinks 

Food, Snacks or drinks are not allowed in classrooms without permission of the teacher. You are 

not to bring or have in your locker opened containers of water or soft drinks. Drinks purchased at 

lunch must be consumed during lunchtime and not taken out to the play area or put in lockers. 

Gum is not allowed at school. 

Change: Omitting the phrase, “Gum is not allowed at school.” 

Page 20: Positive Intervention Center (PIC) 

PIC may be assigned for inappropriate behavior.  Students assigned to PIC will be isolated 

during the day in the PIC room.  Students are to report to the PIC room at 8:15.  While in PIC 

students will be given work from regular classroom teachers to complete during the day. 

Students will be given a morning and afternoon restroom break.  Inappropriate behavior during 

PIC will result in out-of-school suspension or additional days of PIC. 

 

Change: The time will be changed to 8:10 a.m. 

 

 



Middle School Staff Handbook Revisions 
 

1.  Pg. 1 Teacher Attendance – add the wording that teachers are to be available for students 

by 7:45.  Replacing the words of at school by 7:45. 

 

2. Pg. 1 – Sub-Packets – The emergency packet should contain current materials, class rosters, 
seating charts, and directions for use.  Added the words class rosters, seating charts 

 

3. Pg. 5 – Student welfare section - Students who become ill at school should have their agenda signed 

by the teacher and with them when they go to the nurse’s/principal’s office.  Added have their agenda 

signed by the teacher and with them. 

 

4. Pg. 7 Student Supervision – Updated time to 7:45 a.m. for teachers to be at assigned 

classroom from 8:00. 



  

 

West Plains High School 

Recommendations for Handbook Changes 

May 7, 2012 

 

1. Remove Renaissance Program Information (replacing with RTI program) 

 

2. Update Foreward 

 

3. Change Daily Schedule 
a. Current Policy:  

Classrooms Open…………………………7:45 

1
st
 Period………………...…………..8:10-9:00 

2
nd

 Period…………………….……. 9:05-9:55 

3
rd

 Period………………...………..10:00-10:50 

4
th

 Period/Lunch/Advisory…...…..10:55-12:40 

5
th

 Period…………….……………..12:45-1:35 

6
th

 Period…………………………….1:40-2:30 

7
th

 Period……………………...……..2:35-3:25 

b. Recommended Revision: 

Students arriving at school prior to 7:35 a.m. need to report to the cafeteria unless they 

are under the direct supervision of a faculty member. 

Classrooms Open…………………………7:45 

1
st
 Period………………...…………..8:10-8:55 

2
nd

 Period…………………….……. 9:00-9:45 

3
rd

 Period………………...………..9:50-10:35 

Lunch Shifts (3)-A, B, C 

A Group 

―A‖ Lunch   ………………………..10:40-11:10 

4
th

 Period………………………….. 11:15-12:00 

5
th

 Period…………………………...12:05-12:55 

B Group 

4
th

 Period…………………………...10:40-11:25 

―B‖ Lunch…………………………..11:30-12:00 

5
th

 Period……………………………12:05-12:55 

C Group  

4
th

 Period……………………………10:40-11:25 

5
th

 Period……………………………11:30-12:20 

―C‖ Lunch……………………………12:25-12:55 

6
th

 Period…………………………….1:00-1:45 

7
th

 Period……………………...……..1:50:2:35 

8
th

 RTI/ Zizzer Time  Period…………………….………2:40-3:25 

 

4. Amend Graduation Requirements 
Remove: ATTENDANCE: All students are required to attend all eight semesters in 9th, 

10th, 11th and 12th. 

 

 

Color Code 

Yellow:  Current policies 

Green:  Proposed policies 
 

 

 



  

 

5. Revise Participation in Graduation Exercises by removing #6: 
Removed:  Students who complete all of the requirements at the end of seven semesters 

may graduate early.  Participation in Graduation Exercises will be contingent on the 

following: 

Students must attend at least 5 semesters at West Plains High School, and 

Students must be enrolled in (1) post-secondary education or (2) be in active 

military service for the spring semester of their graduating year, or (3) have an 

extenuating family situation. 

Students enrolled in post-secondary education or active military service must 

provide documentation of such to the High School Principal for approval.  

Students must appear before the Board of Education to request permission to 

participate in Graduation Exercises, if there is an extenuating family situation. 

 

6. Add section on Early Graduation: 
Students wishing to graduate early following 7

 
semesters  must obtain permission from 

the High School Principal, Superintendent, and the Board of Education.  The request must be in 

writing and received by the Principal prior to the October board of education meeting.  All 

attendance hours must be completed before an application can be approved.  Acceptable reasons 

for early graduation include:  entering the armed forces, pursuing a college education, 

apprenticeship, or training program, or other circumstances approved by the Board of Education. 

Students considering early graduation should consult their counselor in the spring of their 

junior year to make proper preparation.  Early graduating students are not eligible for MSHSAA 

activities. Students considering early graduation should also consult with A+ coordinator for 

eligibility considerations. 

Early graduates wishing to participate in commencement exercises, must initiate 

communication with the High School Principal prior to the end of their last semester in order to 

receive information regarding graduation.  The student will also be required to attend graduation 

practice and must make arrangements to pick up their cap and gown. 

 

7. Align Semester Test Exemption Policy to current grading scale: 
a. Current Policy 

i. Zero absences and a minimum grade of 80% in the course, or 

ii. 1 or 2 absences and a minimum grade of 85% in the course, or 

iii. 3 absences and a minimum grade of  90%  in the course 

iv. 4 or more absences will disqualify the student from finals exemption 

b. Recommended Policy 

i. Zero absences and a minimum grade of 82% in the course, or 

ii. 1 or 2 absences and a minimum grade of 88% in the course, or 

iii. 3 absences and a minimum grade of  93% in the course 

iv. 4 or more absences will disqualify the student from finals exemption 

c. Remove ―Five (5) tardies for the semester will eliminate the semester test exemption‖ 

 

8. Remove Most Improved Award (part of Renaissance Program) 

 

9. Combine sections to create Grading section (including current grading scale) 
a. Current Progress Reports policy: Current Policy: Teachers are to send home progress 

reports and/or notice of possible failure forms on students experiencing difficulties in 

their classrooms at mid-quarter. 

b. Proposed Progress Reports policy: Progress reports will distributed every three weeks.  

Grade report cards are issued at the end of each nine-week grading period.  Cumulative 

semester grades will be issued and mailed home at the close of each semester.  

Remember grades are posted on a student’s transcript at the end of each semester.  The 

semester grade reflects the total points accumulated over the course of a semester.  



  

 

c. Add Semester Finals section: Final examinations are comprehensive in nature and will 

cover a semester of work.  The final examination will serve as 5% of the student’s 

semester grade.  The semester grade is computed based on total points. 

 

10. Revise Weighted Grades section 
a. Reinstate valedictorian and salutatorian 

i. Change from ―rather‖ to ―additionally‖ students will be recognized according to 

a college-like cum laude system 

ii. Remove statement: Beginning with the class of 2013, West Plains High School 

will no longer identify the Valedictorian and Salutatorian 

b. Weighted Science courses:  add statement that ―beginning with the class of 2014 only AP 

science courses will be weighted‖  and  update related information. 

c. Add College Algebra to the list of Math Weighted Courses 

 

11. Increase number of college days a student may request from one to two and 

remove truancy restriction. 

 

12. Replace attendance policy 
a. Current policy: We know ―regular attendance has a direct effect on the academic 

progress of the students and the development of good habits which will aid students as 

they move into the world beyond the district.‖ Taking this into account, the West Plains 

High School and our staff members condensed the Attendance Policy and Procedures into 

the following important points.  

1. A student is responsible for arriving on time and being prepared to learn in every 

class.  

2. A student is responsible for clearing their excused absences with the attendance 

officer within two school business days. You can call, fax or bring by notes to the 

attendance window located outside the downstairs office.  

3. A student whose absence is excused is responsible for making up assignments 

missed during the absence in the manner provided by the teacher.  

4. A student whose absence is unexcused will be responsible for making up the time 

missed in a manner determined by the school. Examples of such discipline may 

include, but are not limited to Lunch Detention, In-School Suspension, Before and 

After School Tutoring, Progressive discipline including potential Out-of-School 

Suspension for Insubordination.  
It is understood that on every occasion it is not necessary to see a physician and a short 

term illness may be documented by parent note in these cases. Notes may be dropped off 

in the Attendance Office located in the downstairs office by the student when getting 

admit slips. The Attendance Officer reserves the right to require licensed physician notes 

when deemed appropriate.  

Students Absence  
When your child must be absent from school the parent should call the Attendance 

Officer (downstairs office) on the morning of the absence. Parents must follow up by 

calling daily if your child continues to be absent. All absences will remain unexcused if 

the student fails to bring a note within two school business days or a parent has not 

called. A parent may request homework assignments on the third day of a student’s 

absence. Anytime a student comes in late or leaves school early they MUST sign in/out 

with the Attendance Officer. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action.  

Attendance Requirements for Course Credit  
Students will be permitted a maximum of eight (8) absences per class per semester. It is 

important that students realize the eight (8) days of absence included excused and 

unexcused absences. A student who is absent for unacceptable reasons may be subject to 

disciplinary action. Absences subsequent to the eight days may be made up during Before 

and After School Tutoring. Adequate opportunities for students to attend Tutoring are 



  

 

scheduled throughout the year. If a student has 5 unexcused absences in a row a drop 

letter will be sent.  
To receive course credit, a student must complete passing work and be absent no more 

than eight (8) class periods during the semester. Students who miss any one class more 

than eight (8) times during a semester will receive a grade of ―N‖. Credit will not be 

awarded for courses in which an ―N‖ grade is assigned.  

For the ninth and subsequent absences students will attend Before and After School 

Tutoring to make up time missed and in order to receive credit for the semester.  

Disruptive behavior will not be tolerated during Tutoring and disruptive students will be 

sent home with no credit. Students who are tardy to Tutoring will not be allowed to 

participate. Students will remain in the classroom for the specified time.  

If a student misses more days than available Tutoring dates will accommodate, the 

student may file an appeal for extenuating circumstances to be released from those days 

missed. However, the student will have to attend all available days prior to the filing 

of the appeal. The district attendance committee will review appeals at the end of each 

semester. 

 

b. Recommended policy: The philosophy and goal at WPHS is for each student to attend 

every day. The persistence to graduation standard requires all students to be in attendance 

a minimum of 95% of the school year. Based on the 167-day school year, a student must 

be in attendance at least 159 days. These absences can be no more than 10 in any one 

class.  Exceeding 10 absences in any one class for the year or 6 in one semester will 

mean the absences will be automatically unexcused except for documented medical 

emergencies or prior authorization by the administration. 
Regular attendance is necessary for a student to reach his/her maximum potential. A 

student who attends school on a regular basis makes better grades, has higher levels of 

achievement, and is better prepared to pursue a career after graduation.  

Any student who fails to meet the persistency standards will be required to make up the 

attendance with learning activities set by the school. (A list of learning activities can be 

obtained in the High School office.)  

Any senior returning for a 9th semester (5th year) will only have to make up hours 

accrued during the 9th and subsequent semesters.  

Absences  
An absence is defined as more than 15 minutes missed from any 45-minute class. 

Parents are asked to call the school by 10:00 a.m. to report the student’s absence.  
When returning to school from an absence a student must report to the downstairs 

principal's office to obtain an admit slip if the parent has not called in the absence.  

Each student must complete his/her own admit slip and bring a note from parent, 

guardian, or medical authority indicating the reason for the absence.  

No student with an unexcused absence will be allowed to make-up work for credit.  

Any student who falls below ninety-five percent attendance will not be  principal.  

An absence will be classified as:  

• Verified/Excused: An absence that is unavoidable due to illness or other conditions 

transcending the educational need. This type of absence will allow the student to make up 

work if the 10 periods per class have not been missed. This may be appealed to the 

principal. (Car trouble is not an excusable absence due to the school district 

providing bus transportation.) 

 

• Prearranged: An absence that is arranged prior to the absence with the principal or 

assistant principal. This absence may or may not be excused at the administration’s 

discretion. Prearranged absences will be unexcused when in the administration’s 

judgment the reason for the absence does not transcend educational needs.  

• Unexcused: An absence occurring without following proper notification procedures or 

without parental knowledge (before the fact), or in direct defiance of school regulation, or 

under suspension.  

 



  

 

In the case of an absence the parent or guardian must contact the High School office 

(256-3115) by 10:00 a.m. the day of the absence, to inform the principal of the reason for 

the absence. Any absence not reported to the school by phone, note, or in person 

upon the student’s return will be considered truancy and zero credit will be given 

for missed work. Absences for school-sponsored activities are exempt from this policy.  

Make-up work is expected from a student upon return to class from an excused 

prearranged absence. The time allowed for make-up work to be completed will be 

reasonable and should be made up according to the late work policy for that class. 

Students are encouraged to begin their make-up work as soon as possible and before they 

return to school.  

A parent may request homework through the,  e-mail, or the teacher’s web page if 

multiple days of absence are predicted or may use the individual teacher voice mail to 

leave a message to request assignment information.  

A student who wishes to practice or participate in extracurricular activities must be 

in attendance the entire day unless excused by administration in advance. For 

Saturday participation, the student must have an excused absence on Friday or have 

prior approval by the administration. (See the Activities Code of Conduct for 

additional information)  

 

13. Revision to Community Task Force Attendance Policy 
a. Revise to ―ten absences‖ from ―eight absences‖ 

b. Revise time to pick up admission slips from ―8 to 8:25‖ to ―7:45 to 8:05‖ 

c. In Procedure for Leaving School Grounds add statement  Parents wishing to check out 

their students without requesting it a day in advance must do so in person. 

 

14. Revise Tardiness section 
a. Current Policy: Students who are not in their classroom when the tardy bell rings are 

tardy to class. Students who are tardy to their first hour class must obtain an admit slip 

from the Assistant Principal’s office. If a student is tardy to any other period they should 

proceed directly to the class. 

b. Recommended Policy: A Tardy is defined as a student not being within the classroom 

when the tardy bell begins.  All teachers will close their doors when the bell rings for 

class to begin.  Any student not in the room will be considered tardy and will be taken to 

the downstairs office by faculty ―tardy sweepers‖.  At the downstairs office students  will 

be issued a tardy pass which they will use gain access back to class.  The only exception 

to this is if he/she has a written note from a staff member.  A student must check in 

through the downstairs office if arriving more than five minutes after the first hour tardy 

bell.  He/ she must enter his first hour class with a note from the office.  A student  will 

be called to the office on their sixth accumulated tardy 

 

15. Remove Homework Policy 

 

16. Add statement under Dances and Prom section 
a. ―Dates must be in high school and/or less than 21 years of age.‖  This is currently only 

listed in the Prom section. 

 

 

 

17. Update Student Identification Badges section 
a. Current Policy: Due to the high number of individuals who utilize our campus daily it is 

important that we maintain a safe school environment. Students will be required to carry 

their ID on their person during school hours and any school related activity. Students 

must show ID upon request. Students not able to show their ID may lose privileges and 

receive consequence.  



  

 

Student’s first ID badge will be provided by the school district and remains the property 

of the school for the current academic year. Should an ID badge be misplaced, damaged 

or defaced students will be required to purchase a replacement from the Assistant 

Principal’s office at the student’s expense of $5.00. Replacement ID can be obtained 

during Advisory. Misuse of ID badges, or using or damaging another students badge may 

result in disciplinary action. The badge will be provided with a lanyard.  

The badge will also serve as the student library card and will be used as a renaissance 

card, if the student qualifies. 

b. Recommended Policy: Due to the high number of individuals who utilize our campus 

daily it is important that we maintain a safe school environment.  Student I.D. badges will 

be issued in three colors:  Red, Gold and Platinum. The three colors are part of the 

―Zizzer Time‖ 8
th

 hour.  Students will be issued a card every three weeks in conjunction 

with distribution of progress reports.  Students will receive a card based on three factors:  

grades, discipline and attendance.   

 

PLATINUM CARD - Students who serve as Zizzer time tutors will be issued a platinum 

card.  With a platinum card those students will gain free admission to athletic contests, 

dances including prom and they will receive preferred parking in the student lot. That 

I.D. card will serve as an library card. 

 

Red cards and Gold cards will be taken up and reissued by the students advisory teacher 

every three week grading period. 

 

GOLD CARD - Students with no D’s or F’s, no discipline referrals requiring ISS or OSS 

placement and no attendance problems will receive a Gold Card I.D. With that ID card 

they will gain free admission to athletic contests  and they will be able to attend privilege 

time during 8
th

 period. That I.D. card will serve as an library card. 

 

In order to attend privilege time student must show the privilege time area teacher their 

gold card. 

 

RED CARD- Students with any D’s or F’s, a discipline infraction requiring I.S.S. or 

O.S.S. placement or attendance issues will receive a red I.D. card for three weeks.  That 

I.D. card will serve as an library card. 

 

8
th

 Period Response to Intervention (R.T.I.)/ Zizzer Time  

 

At West Plains High School we want students to be successful.  The eight hour R.T.I. 

program is intended to help our students who are struggling academically.  During this 

time students who are struggling academically will be assigned to a tutor or a study hall 

where they can work on improving their grades in science, math, communication arts and 

social studies.   These assignments are made for 3 weeks in conjunction with distributing 

progress reports. 

Students will be assigned to a study hall if they have D’s or F’s in non-core classes.  

Students who have received a discipline referral requiring a ISS/ or OSS placement or 

attendance issues (ex. truancy, excessive absences ) will be assigned to a study hall 

Students who have no D’s, F’s  discipline referrals, or attendance issues will receive 

―privilege time‖ 

Students may attend the following areas during privledge time 

 

-Cafeteria  

-Library/ Computer lab 

-Agriculture Building* 

-Sports Complex 

-Art Room* 

-Band Room* 



  

 

-Choir Room* 

-Athletic Practices * 

*Areas open to students in those programs. 

 

Students must report to a privilege time area by the tardy bell.  Students must present 

their gold card and they must sign in at the privilege time area..  Once a student has 

signed in to a privilege time area they may not leave. 

 

Students who leave school during privilege time without permission will be considered 

truant.  Students who are not in designated 8th hour areas will be considered truant. 

 

18. Amend Food and Open Container Policy 
a. Current Policy: All food and open containers are subject to search and are to be 

confined to the designated eating areas (Cafeteria). Food and drinks are not to be 

consumed in the hallways or stored in lockers (with the exception of sack lunches). 
Delivery of fast food during the school day is prohibited. Failure to comply will result in 

disciplinary action. 

b. Recommended Policy: All food and open containers are subject to search and are to 

be confined to the designated eating areas (Cafeteria).  Only bottles of water are 

allowed in hallways and classrooms.  Food and drinks are not to be consumed in the 

hallways or stored in lockers (with the exception of sack lunches). Delivery of fast 

food during the school day is prohibited. Failure to comply will result in disciplinary 

action. 

 

19. Amend Dress Code 
a. Change from ―All sleeveless shirts must have straps that are at least the width of a dollar 

bill and all shirts must prevent exposure of undergarments ― to  ―All Shirts must have a 

sleeve.‖ 

b. Change from: ―Jeans or pants with holes above the tip of the middle finger are not 

allowed (when standing upright)‖ to ―Jeans or pants with holes or tears which completely 

go through the cloth above the knee are not allowed (when standing upright)‖ 

 

20. Amend Cell Phone Policy 
a. Current Policy: Cell phones should not be seen, heard, or used at school. Students are 

prohibited from the use of cellular phones, to include text messaging, from the time they 

arrive at school until the school day ends. Violation of this policy will result in 

confiscation, possible suspension, and may only be picked up by a parent of the student. 

b. Recommended Policy: Students are prohibited from the use of cellular phones, to 

include text messaging, from 8:10 a.m. (first bell) until 3:25p.m. (last bell).  Teachers 

may allow cell phone use in their classrooms for educational purposes. Violation of this 

policy will result in confiscation, possible suspension, and may only be picked up by a 

parent of the student. 

 

21. Revise Student Conduct Section (see attached) 
a. Update consequences to include Friday School and After School  Detention 

b. Align similar infractions with similar consequences 

c. Align discipline code with board policies 

d. Redesign section to put consequences with infractions 

 

22. Update Clubs and Organizations 

 

23. Include 2012-2013 School Calendar 

  



  

 

Color Code 

Yellow:  Current policies 

Green:  Proposed policies  



  

 

Recommended Student Conduct Section 
STUDENT CONDUCT 

 

The Student Code of Conduct is designed to foster student responsibility, respect for the rights of others, and to insure 

the orderly operations of district schools. No code can be expected to list each and every offense which may result in 

the use of disciplinary action. However, it is the purpose of this Code to list certain offenses, which if committed by a 

student, will result in the imposition of a specific penalty.  

The circumstances surrounding an incident and the student’s previous disciplinary record should be taken into account 

in determining the appropriate punishment. Therefore, it is sometimes necessary to take more firm disciplinary action 

than the guidelines might call for because of repeated misconduct. It is assumed that the classroom teacher will handle 

many of the minor violations of rules which do not warrant referral to an administrator.  

 

PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS OF WPHS STUDENT CONDUCT CODE  
 
1. STUDENT CONFERENCE/WARNING BY A PRINCIPAL.  

 

2. PARENT/STUDENT CONFERENCE WITH PRINCIPAL.  
 
3. LUNCH DETENTION: Students assigned to LUNCH DETENTION are to report to the designated room at the beginning of 
the lunch period.  Students in LUNCH DETENTION will bring their own lunch or will have a sack lunch with white milk delivered to 

the room.  Failure to bring assignments to complete will result in additional time being assigned.  LUNCH DETENTION is supervised 

by a certified teacher.  
 

4. AFTER SCHOOL DETENTION (ASD):  A student may be assigned a 45-minute detention before or after school.  Failure 
to bring assignments to complete will result in additional time being assigned.   

 

5. FRIDAY SCHOOL:  Student assigned to Friday School at the High School will be under the supervision of a teacher, he/she 
will work on assigned class work from 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Failure to bring assignments to complete will result in additional time 

being assigned.   
 

6. IN-SCHOOL SUSPENSION (ISS): To be served during the school day in the ISS Room under the supervision of a school 
employee. Students are to report to ISS with all books and a completed daily assignment sheet.  

In-School Suspension Rules  
1. Student will be reading or studying the entire time.  

2. Lunch will be at the regular time. Lunch can either be brought from home or from the cafetorium. Lunch  

    must be eaten in the room.  

3. There will be NO SLEEPING, reclining or putting head on desk.  

4. Students should get assignments from teachers before the day they are assigned to in-school  

    suspension. Students will be assigned one extra day of ISS if they fail to get assignments.  

5. Students should bring schoolwork or book to read (no magazines or newspapers) during suspension.  

6. Students must complete daily assignments as a condition for release from in- school suspension.  
 

7. OUT OF SCHOOL SUSPENSION (OSS): Suspended students may not be on campus or at school activities while 
suspended. Failure to comply will result in additional suspension. Building Principal(s) may suspend for up to 10 days. The 

Superintendent may suspend for up to 90 days.  

 

8. EXPULSION: By the West Plains R-VII Board of Education. Student may not return to school.  

 

9. CORPORAL PUNISHMENT: Corporal punishment, as a measure of correction or of maintaining discipline and order in 

schools, is permitted. However, it shall be used only when all other alternative means of discipline have failed, and then only in 

reasonable form and upon the recommendation of the principal. If found necessary, it should never be inflicted in the presence of other 
pupils nor without a witness. Corporal punishment shall be administered only by swatting the buttocks with a paddle. When it 

becomes necessary to use corporal punishment, it shall be administered so that there can be no chance of bodily injury or harm. 

Striking a student on the head or face is not permitted. The teacher or principal shall submit a report to the superintendent, explaining 
the reason for the use of corporal punishment as well as the details of the administration of the same. A staff member may, however, 

use reasonable physical force against a student without advance notice to the principal, if it is essential for self-defense, the 

preservation of order, or for the protection of other persons or the property of the school district.  

 

10. OTHER: Reasonable penalties worked out between student, parents and administrators.  
Example: restitution for damages; working after school. 

 

 



  

 

VIOLATIONS AGAINST PERSONS 
 

 

ASSAULT – The Missouri Safe Schools Act of 1996 establishes the crime of ―assault while on school property‖. A 

person commits the crime of assault while on school property if the person 
1) Knowingly causes physical injury to another person; or 

2) With criminal negligence, causes physical injury to another person by means of a deadly weapon; or 

3) Recklessly engages in conduct which creates a grave risk of death or serious physical injury to another person; and 

the act occurred on school or school district property, or in a vehicle that at the time of the act was in the service of a 

school or school district, or arose as a result of a school or school district-sponsored activity. 

Assault while on school property is a class D felony. 

(Safe School Act—House Bills 1301 & 1298; 1996) 

 

Hitting, striking and/or attempting to cause injury to another person; placing a person in reasonable apprehension of 

imminent physical injury; physically injuring another person. 

 

Step One: 5-10 days OSS and parent conference with principal. 

Step Two: 10-180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 
 
Attempting to kill or cause serious physical injury to another; killing or causing serious physical injury to another. 

 

Step One: Expulsion. 

 
 

BULLYING/CYBERBULLYING (see Board policy JFCF) – Intimidation or harassment of a student or 

multiple students perpetuated by individuals or groups. Bullying includes, but is not limited to: physical actions, 

including violence, gestures, theft, or damaging property; oral or written taunts, including name-calling, put-downs, 

extortion, or threats; threats of retaliation for reporting such acts; sending or posting harmful or cruel text or images 

using the Internet or other digital communication devices; sending or posting materials that threaten or raise concerns 

about violence against others, suicide or self-harm. Students will not be disciplined for speech in situations where the 

speech is protected by law. 

 

Step One: 5 days OSS; parent conference with principal. 

Step Two: 10 days OSS; parent conference with superintendent. 

Step Three: 10-180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 

 
Harassing, intimidating or threatening computer usage: Inappropriate computer usage intended to harass, 

intimidate, or threaten student(s) and staff. This includes language or written material that is disparaging or 

demeaning. Written or symbolic words or gestures meant to harass or injure another person; i.e., threats of violence 

or defamation of a person’s race, religion, gender, or ethnic origin. Constitutionally protected speech will not be 

punished. 

 

Step One: 10-180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 

 
 

FIGHTING (see also, “Assault”) – Mutual combat in which both parties have contributed to the conflict either 

verbally or by physical action. 

 

Step One: 5-10 days OSS; parent conference with principal. 

Step Two: 10 days OSS; parent conference with superintendent. 

Step Three: 10-180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 

 
HAZING (see Board policy JFCF) – Any activity that a reasonable person believes would negatively impact the 

mental or physical health or safety of a student or put the student in a ridiculous, humiliating, stressful or 

disconcerting position for the purposes of initiation, affiliation, admission, membership or maintenance of 



  

 

membership in any group, class, organization, club or athletic team including, but not limited to, a grade level, 

student organization or district-sponsored activity. Hazing may occur even when all students involved are willing 

participants. 

 

Step One: 5 days OSS; parent conference with principal. 

Step Two: 10 days OSS; parent conference with superintendent. 

Step Three: 10-180 OSS; possible expulsion. 

 

 

HARASSMENT, including Sexual Harassment (see Board policy AC) 

 

Use of material of a sexual nature or unwelcome verbal, written or symbolic language based on gender, race, color, 

religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability or any other characteristic protected by law. Examples of illegal 

harassment include, but are not limited to, racial jokes or comments; requests for sexual favors and other unwelcome 

sexual advances; graffiti; name calling; or threatening, intimidating or hostile acts based on a protected characteristic. 

 

Step One: Principal/Student conference; ASD or Friday School; ISS; 1-180 days OSS; or 

expulsion. 

Step Two: ISS; 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

 

Sexual Misconduct - Unwelcome physical contact of a sexual nature or that is based on gender, race, color, religion, 

sex, national origin, ancestry, disability or any other characteristic protected by law. Examples include, but are not 

limited to, touching or fondling of the genital areas, breasts or undergarments, regardless of whether the touching 

occurred through or under clothing; or pushing or fighting based on protected characteristics. 

 

Step One: ISS; 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

Step Two: 1-180 days OSS or expulsion. 

 

Sexual Activity – Acts of sex or simulated acts of sex. 

Step One: 3-5 days ISS or OSS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 5-10 days OSS; conference with Principal. 

Step Three: 10-180 days OSS; referral to superintendent before readmission. 

 

 

INCENDIARY DEVICES/FIREWORKS– Possessing, displaying or using matches, lighters, fireworks or 

other devices used to start fires unless required as part of an educational exercise and supervised by district staff; 

possessing or using fireworks. 

 

Step One: 2-10 days ISS or OSS. 

Step Two: 5-10 days OSS; referral to superintendent. 

 

 

INSTIGATING A FIGHT – Students shall not instigate fights by actively encouraging others to fight, carrying 

messages which result in fights or take part in any other activity which results in a fight or take part in any behavior 

that encourages violence. 

 

Step One: 1-3 days ISS or OSS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-5 days OSS; conference required for readmission. 

Step Three: 10 days OSS; referral to principal before readmission. 

 

 

VERBAL ABUSE TO STAFF – Verbal, written or symbolic language or gesture, that is rude, vulgar, 

disrespectful and defiant or considered inappropriate in public settings, directed at a staff member. 

 

Step One: 1-3 ASD or Friday School; 2-5 days ISS or OSS. 

Step Two: 5-10 days OSS. 

Step Three: Expulsion. 



  

 

 

 

VERBAL ABUSE TO STAFF OF A THREATENING NATURE – Verbal, written or symbolic language 

or gesture that is threatening in nature; directed at a staff member. 
 

Step One: 5-10 days OSS. 

Step Two: 10 days OSS. 

Step Three: Expulsion. 

 

 

FALSE ACCUSATIONS TOWARD A STAFF MEMBER - Any intentional slander or libelous statements 

by a student towards any school employee, which is malicious, untrue and meant to harm that staff member’s 

reputation or employment, will result in immediate suspension. 

 
Step One: 10-180 days OSS. 

Step Two: 90-180 days OSS. 

 

 

WEAPONS (see Board policy JFCJ) – The possession or use of a weapon, concealed or otherwise, by any student 

is prohibited upon or in the vicinity of school grounds, while going to or from school or at any school sponsored 

event. Examples include, but are not limited to: knives, guns, chains, metal knuckles, fireworks or explosives. (This 

would include any item representing a weapon.) 

 

Possession of a firearm, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 921 or any instrument or device defined in 571.010 RSMo., or 

any instrument or device defined as a dangerous weapon in 18 U.S.C. § 930(g)(2). 

 

Step One: One (1) calendar year OSS or expulsion. 

Step Two: Expulsion. 

 

Possession or use of any weapon as defined in Board policy, other than those defined in 18 U.S.C. § 921, 18 U.S.C. 

§ 930(g)(2) or § 571.010, RSMo. 

 

Step One: 10-180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 

Step Two: 180 days OSS; possible expulsion. 

 

Possession or use of ammunition or a component of a weapon. 

 

Step One: 1-10 days ISS or OSS; or expulsion. 

Step Two: 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

 

 

VIOLATIONS AGAINST PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

 

DRUGS/ALCOHOL (see Board policies JFCH and JHCD) 

 

Possession, sale, purchase or distribution of any over-the-counter drug, herbal preparation or imitation drug or herbal 

preparation. 

Step One: ISS; or 1-180 days OSS. 

Step Two: 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

 

Possession of or in attendance while under the influence of or soon after consuming unauthorized prescription 

drug, alcohol, narcotic substance, unauthorized inhalants, counterfeit drugs, imitation controlled substances or drug-

related paraphernalia, including controlled substances and illegal drugs defined as substances identified under 

schedules I, II, III, IV or V in section 202(c) of the Controlled Substances Act. This includes energy enhancers, 

dietary supplements and nicotine patches. 



  

 

 

Step One; 10 day OSS. If a student agrees to a chemical dependency evaluation at an 

approved facility, suspension will be reduced to 5 days. 

Step Two: 10-180 day OSS; pending expulsion, unless the student agrees to a chemical 

dependency evaluation and complies with the recommended treatment plan. 

Step Three: Expulsion. 

 

 

Sale, purchase or distribution of any prescription drug, alcohol, narcotic substance, unauthorized inhalants, 

counterfeit drugs, imitation controlled substances or drug-related paraphernalia, including controlled substances and 

illegal drugs defined as substances identified under schedules I, II, III, IV or V in section 202(c) of the Controlled 

Substances Act. 

 

Step One: Expulsion. 

 

 

SECRET ORGANIZATIONS (see Board policy JFCE) – The Board of Education does not recognize secret 

organizations. Sororities, fraternities, gangs or secret societies of the community are not school organizations. 

Conduct by students while in school such as hazing of initiates, special attire (including pins and insignia or other 

identifying symbols), improper activity on campus or any other influence of sorority, fraternity, gang or secret 

society that interferes with the normal conduct of the educational program shall not be permitted. 

 

Step One: 10-180 OSS. 

Step Two: 90-180 OSS. 

 

 

TOBACCO USE AND/OR THE POSSESSION OF – Students found to be in possession or using any 

tobacco product on district premises, or areas adjacent to school, district transportation or at any district related 

activities is prohibited. Tobacco products will be confiscated and destroyed. It is against the law of Missouri for 

minors to buy, use or possess tobacco products. 

 

Step One: 2-5 ASD or Friday School; or ISS. 

Step Two: 5-10 ASD or Friday School; or ISS. 

Step Three: 5-10 days OSS. 

 

 

 

VIOLATIONS AGAINST PROPERTY 
 

 

ARSON – Starting or attempting to start a fire or causing or attempting to cause an explosion. 

 

Step One: 10-90 days OSS with possible expulsion. 

Step Two: 10-180 days OSS with possible expulsion. 

Step Three: Expulsion. 

 

 

BOMB THREAT – The Safe Schools Act 1996 increases the penalty for making a false bomb report from a Class 

A misdemeanor to a Class D felony. 

 

Step One: 10-90 days OSS with possible expulsion. 

Step Two: Expulsion. 

 

 



  

 

EXTORTION – Threatening or intimidating any student for the purpose of, or with the intent of, obtaining money or 

anything of value from the student. 

 

Step One: 5-10 days OSS. 

Step Two: Expulsion. 

 

 

FALSE ALARM – Tampering with emergency equipment, setting off false alarms, making false reports; 

communicating a threat or false report for the purpose of frightening or disturbing people, disrupting the educational 

environment or causing the evacuation or closure of district property. 

 

Step One: 10 days OSS; parent conference. 

Subsequent Step: Expulsion. 

 

 

TECHNOLOGY MISCONDUCT(see Board policies EHB and KKB and procedure EHB-AP) 
 

Attempting, regardless of success, to: gain unauthorized access to a technology system or information; use district 

technology to connect to other systems in evasion of the physical limitations of the remote system; copy district files 

without authorization; interfere with the ability of others to utilize district technology; secure a higher level of 

privilege without authorization; introduce computer viruses, hacking" tools, or other disruptive/destructive programs 

onto or using district technology; or evade or disable a filtering/blocking device. 

 

Step One: Restitution. Principal/Student conference; loss of user privileges; ASD; Friday 

School; or ISS. 

Subsequent Step: Restitution. Loss of user privileges; 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

 

 

 

THEFT – Theft, attempted theft or knowing possession of stolen student, staff or school property. 

 

Step One: 1-3 days ISS or OSS and restitution; parent conference. 

Step Two: 5-10 days ISS or OSS and restitution; parent conference. 

Step Three: 10-180 days OSS and restitution; referral to superintendent before readmission. 

 

 

VANDALISM (see Board policy ECA) – The willful damage or the attempt to cause damage to any property, real 

or personal, belonging to the district, staff or students. 

 

Step One: Restitution and 5-10 days OSS. 

Step Two: Restitution and expulsion. 

 



  

 

VIOLATIONS OF PUBLIC DECENCY AND GOOD ORDER 

 

ACADEMIC DISHONESTY – Cheating on tests, assignments, projects or similar activities; plagiarism; claiming credit 

for another person's work; fabrication of facts, sources or other supporting material; unauthorized collaboration; facilitating 

academic dishonesty; and other misconduct related to academics.   

 

Step One: ―0‖ Grade for Assignment; 3 days Lunch Detention; ASD or Friday School; 

and/or Parent Conference. 

Step Two: ―0‖ Grade for Assignment; 1-3 ASD or Friday School; 1-3 days ISS; and/or 

Parent Conference. 

Step Three: ―0‖ Grade for Assignment; 3-5 days ISS; Conference with Principal. 

Subsequent Step: ―0‖ Grade for Assignment; 5-10 days OSS; Referral to Superintendent. 

 

 

CARELESS DRIVING VIOLATIONS – This covers students who drive carelessly or without due caution on or 

adjacent to West Plains High School campus, so as to endanger persons on the property. Career Center students are not 

permitted to drive to the other vocational locations without advanced or special approval from the director. 

 

Step One: 1-3 ASD or Friday School; or 1 day ISS. 

Step Two: 2-5 days ASD or Friday School; ISS; driving privileges revoked for 2 weeks; 

parent conference. 

Step Three: 5 days OSS; conference with principal. 

 

 

DISHONESTY - Any act of lying, whether verbal or written, including forgery.  Including: failure to properly identify self 

when asked and/or withholding information from teachers and/or administrators when asked.  

 

Step One: 1-3 ASD or Friday School, or ISS. 

Step Two: 2-5 ASD or Friday School or ISS. 

Step Three: 10 days OSS; parent conference with superintendent for readmission. 

 

 

DISMISSAL FROM DETENTION, FRIDAY SCHOOL, or ISS – Any student who is disruptive in Lunch Detention, 

After-School Detention, Friday School, or In-School Suspension will be referred to the principal’s office. 

 

Step One: Assigned punishment doubled; parent notification. 

Step Two: 2-3 days ISS; parent notification. 

Step Three: 5 days ISS; parent notification; conference with principal for readmission. 

Step Four: 10 days OSS; parent notification; conference with superintendent for 

readmission. 

Step Five: 90 days OSS. 

 

 

DISRUPTIVE CLASSROOM BEHAVIOR AND/OR DISMISSAL FROM CLASS – In the event a student has 

disrupted class and the classroom teacher has attempted to remedy the problem using other methods, the student shall be 

dismissed from class and referred to the assistant principal’s/director’s office. The classroom teacher will submit a written 

report on the nature of the problem to the assistant principal/director. A copy of this report will be mailed to the 

parent/guardian. Dismissals are tabulated throughout the school year and may be from any class. 

 

Step One: Conference, warning or 1-3  Lunch Detention, ASD. 

Step Two: 1-3 ASD or Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Three: 2-3 days ISS; OSS; conference with principal required for readmission. 

Step Four: 5 days OSS; conference with principal required for readmission. 

Step Five: 10 days OSS conference with superintendent required for readmission. 

Step Six: 90 days OSS. 

 



  

 

 

DISRUPTION AND INTERFERENCE WITH SCHOOL – No student shall block the doorway or corridor; prevent 

others from attending a class or district activity; block normal pedestrian or vehicular traffic; threaten (verbally or in writing) 

the safety and security of the school, use violence, force/noise coercion, threats, intimidation, racial or ethnic intimidation, 

harassment, fear, passive resistance or any other conduct intentionally to cause a disruption of the educational environment. 

Nor shall they refuse to identify themselves on request or encourage other students to violate any rule or school Board policy. 

 

Step One: 1-5 days ISS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 5-10 days OSS; referral to superintendent for reinstatement. 

 
 

DRESS CODE VIOLATIONS (see policy JFCA and procedure JFCA-AP) (SEE ALSO DRESS CODE P. ?) 

 

Step One: 1-3 ASD or Friday School; student required to change clothes. 

Step Two: 2-5 Friday School; or ISS; student required to change clothes. 

Step Three: 10 days OSS; parent conference with superintendent for readmission. 

 

 

ELECTRONIC DEVICES – At no time are cell phones allowed to be used during the school day.  Cell phones should be 

turned off at the beginning of school and left off until school is dismissed.  Other electronic devices such as CD player, I pods, 

etc., may be used in the hallways and lunchroom but not in classes unless the student has the teacher’s consent. Camera phones 

may not be used on school property unless permission is granted from all parties photographed, taking picture in areas where 

privacy is expected, such as locker rooms, restrooms, etc., is a criminal offense and will be turned over to law enforcement and 

dealt with as a disciplinary issue by the school.  Laser pointers should never be brought to school and will be confiscated 

immediately.  Students are also reminded that such property brought to school is the responsibility of the student and WPHS is 

not responsible for theft of such property.  Refusal to give a staff member a phone due to a violation will result in an additional 

charge of insubordination. 

 

Step One: Confiscated and returned at the end of the day to student. 

Step Two Confiscated and only returned to a parent or guardian: 

1 day ISS; Administration Discretion. 

Subsequent Step: Confiscated and only returned to a parent or guardian; 3 days ISS; 

Administration Discretion. 

 

FAILURE TO ATTEND DETENTION/ISS– Students who are assigned DETENTION or ISS are expected to report on 

time and on the day assigned. 

 

Step One: Assigned punishment doubled; parent notification. 

Step Two: Assigned punishment doubled, 2-3 days ISS or; OSS. 

Step Three: 3-5 days ISSor OSS 

Step Four: 10-90 days OSS. 

 

 

FAILURE TO BRING NECESSARY MATERIALS TO CLASS OR COMPLETE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Step One: Warning; Parent Conference with Teacher 

Step Two: 1-3 Days Lunch Detention or ASD 

Step Three: 1-3 days ASD or Friday School; ISS 

Subsequent Step; 3-5 ISS; Conference with Principal 

 

 

FAILURE TO MEET CONDITIONS OF SUSPENSION, EXPULSION, OR OTHER DISCIPLINARY 

CONSEQUENCES - Violating the conditions of a suspension, expulsion or other disciplinary consequence including, but 

not limited to, participating in or attending any district-sponsored activity or being on or near district property or the location 

where a district activity is held. See the section of this regulation titled, "Conditions of Suspension, Expulsion and Other 

Disciplinary Consequences." 



  

 

As required by law, when the district considers suspending a student for an additional period of time or expelling a student for 

being on or within 1,000 feet of district property during a suspension, consideration shall be given to whether the student poses 

a threat to the safety of any child or school employee and whether the student's presence is disruptive to the educational process 

or undermines the effectiveness of the district's discipline policy. 

 

Step One: Verbal warning; ASD or Friday school; ISS; 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

Report to law enforcement for trespassing if expelled. 

Subsequent Step: Verbal warning, ASD or Friday school; ISS; 1-180 days OSS; or expulsion. 

Report to law enforcement for trespassing if expelled. 

 

 

FOOD AND OPEN CONTAINERS - All food and open containers are subject to search and are to be confined to the 

designated eating areas (Cafeteria). Food and drinks are not to be consumed in the hallways or stored in lockers (with the 

exception of sack lunches). Delivery of fast food during the school day is prohibited. Failure to comply will result in disciplinary 

action. 

 

Step One: Warning. 

Step Two: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS. 

Step Three: 3-5 days ISS; and parent notification. 

 

 

GAMBLING– Betting on an uncertain outcome, regardless of stakes; engaging in any game of chance or activity in which 

something of real or symbolic value may be won or lost. Gambling includes, but is not limited to, betting on outcomes of 

activities, assignments, contests and games. 

 

Step One: Principal/Student conference; loss of privilege; 1-3 days ASD or Friday 

School; or ISS. 

Subsequent Step: Principal/Student conference; loss of privileges; 2-5 days ASD or Friday 

School; ISS; or 1-10 days OSS. 

 
 

HALL PASSES – Any student out of a regularly scheduled class, during a scheduled class period, is required to have in their 

possession a hall pass that has been authorized by the assigned teacher. Failure to meet this requirement will automatically 

result in. 

 

Each Offense: 1-3 ASD or Friday School. 

 

 

INSUBORDINATION AND REFUSAL TO DO WORK – Defiance, willful refusal to perform requested action and 

disrespectfulness in word and action.  Including, refusing to comply with a teacher’s request in a timely or appropriate manner. 

 

Step One: 1-3 ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-10 days IS; or OSS. 

Step Three: Semester OSS. 

 

 

NUISANSE ITEMS – Possession/use of these items is considered a disruption or possible disruption of the educational 

process. 

 

Electronic Devices – (SEE ALSO PERSONAL ENTERANINMENT DEVICE AND CELL PHONES P.?) West Plains R-

VII School District recommends that students should not bring Walkmans, MP3’s, IPods, CD players, etc. to school due to the 

high theft nature of these items. Students who choose to bring such items do so at their own risk and neither the West Plains R-

VII School District nor its faculty will be held liable for lost, stolen, or broken items. The ability of students to use such devices 

is left to the discretion of the individual teacher during their class time. 

 

Step One: Confiscated and returned at the end of the day to student. 

Step Two Confiscated and only returned to a parent or guardian: 



  

 

1 day ISS; Administration Discretion. 

Subsequent Step: Confiscated and only returned to a parent or guardian; 3 days ISS; 

Administration Discretion. 

 
Knives (blade less than 4 inches) – The possession or use of any type of knife, including pocket knives, is prohibited. 

Step One: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-5 days ISS; referral to principal. 

Step Three: 5-10 days OSS; referral to superintendent for readmission. 

 

Laser Lights – Laser pointers/lights may cause eye damage and therefore are prohibited at school and all school activities. 

Step One: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-5 days ISS; referral to principal. 

Step Three: 5-10 days OSS; referral to superintendent for readmission. 

 

Skateboards – Skateboards are not allowed on campus. 

 

Step One: Held by assistant principal until day’s end. 

Step Two: Held by assistant principal until parent picks up. 

 

Other – Any disruptive or potentially disruptive item not listed 

Step One: Administrator’s discretion. 

Step Two: Administrator’s discretion. 

 

 

OUTOF SCHOOL SUSPENSION AND ALTERNATIVE LEARNING CENTER - Students who violate the 

conduct code while attending the Alternative Learning Center  (OALC) will have the suspension lengthened. (SEE ALSO 

OUT-OF-SCHOOL SUSPENSIONS OALC P.? 

 

Step One: 3-10 days added to suspension. 

Step Two: 11-180 days OSS. 

 

PARKING VIOLATIONS – Student drivers who park so as to impede normal traffic flow. Students should only park in 

designated areas; failure to do so will result in the following penalties: 

 

Step One: 1 day ASD; Friday School; or ISS. 

Step Two: 2-5 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parking/driving privileges revoked for 2 

weeks; parent conference. 

Step Three: 3-5 days OSS. 

 

 

POSSESSION OF SEXUALLY EXPLICT, VULGAR, OR VIOLENT MATERIAL, USE OF LEWD OR 

OBSCENE LITERATURE – The writing or drawing of lewd or obscene literature, gang/satanic writing and drug related 

items. These are offensive to school standards and do not have a serious literary, artistic, political or scientific value.  Students 

may not possess or display, electronically or otherwise, sexually explicit, vulgar or violent material including, but not limited 

to, pornography or depictions of nudity, violence or explicit death or injury. This prohibition does not apply to curricular 

material that has been approved by district staff for its educational value. Students will not be disciplined for speech in 

situations where it is protected by law. 

 

Step One: 1-2 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS. 

Step Two: 3-5 days Friday School; ISS; or OSS. 

Step Three: 3 days OSS; conference with principal. 

 

PUBLIC DISPLAY OF AFFECTION (PDA) – The public display of affection is not appropriate behavior at school. 

Failure to comply with the reasonable expectations of the school staff will result in disciplinary action. 

 

Step One: Conference and/or warning and/or ASD. 



  

 

Step Two: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Three: 2-5 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

 

TARDINESS – Students who are not in their seats prepared for work when the tardy bell rings are considered tardy.  (SEE 

TARDINESS P. ?) Tardies are totaled cumulatively for all classes by QUARTERS. 

 

Sixth Tardy 1 day Lunch Detention. 

Seventh Tardy 2 days Lunch Detention 

Eighth Tardy 1-2 days ASD or Friday School. 

Ninth Tardy 2-3 days ASD or Friday School; 2 days ISS. 

Each Additional Tardy: 2 days ISS; 

 

TRUANCY (see Board policy JED) – Absence from school, assigned class, and/or location without the knowledge and 

consent of parents/guardians and the school administration; excessive non-justifiable absences, even with the consent of 

parents/guardians. (SEE ALSO TRUANCY P.?) 

 

On Campus - Failure to report to assigned location when on campus.  Permission must be obtained and granted by supervisory 

staff member(s) or administrator when a student is going to be in a class or area where they are not assigned. 

Step One: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-5 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; parent conference. 

Step Three: 5 days OSS; referral to principal. 

Step Four: 10 days OSS; referral to superintendent. 

Step Five: Recommended OSS of 90 days. 

 

Off Campus – Leaving campus after arrival before or during the school day or at lunchtime, including going to the West 

Plains Middle School campus during the school day without permission from the principal.   

 

Step One: 3-5 days ISS. 

Step Two: 5 days OSS; referral to principal. 

Step Three: 10 days OSS; referral to superintendent. 

Step Four: Recommended OSS of 90 days. 

 

USE OF DISRUPTIVE SPEECH AND CONDUCT – Conduct or speech, be it verbal, written, pictorial or symbolic 

that materially and substantially disrupts classroom work, school activities, school functions such as not keeping hands and feet 

to yourself, talking in class when told not to do so, insubordination and refusal to do work. 

 

Step One: Conference with student and notification of parents. 

Step Two: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; and parent conference. 

Step Three: 3-10 days ISS. 

Step Four: Semester OSS. 

 
DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOR WITH INJURY 

 

Step One: 1-3 days ISS and Parent Conference 

Step Two: 3-5 days ISS and Parent Conference 

Step Three: 3-10 days OSS 

Step Four: Semester Suspension 

 

USE OF LANGUAGE OR BEHAVIOR THAT IS DISPARAGING, DEMEANING, OR THREATENING – 

Words or actions, verbal, written, pictorial or symbolic meant to harass or injure other people, such as threats of violence, 

name-calling, putdowns, intentionally hurting others’ feelings, spitting, depantsing, defamation of a person’s race, religion, 

gender or ethnic origin. All threats of violence will be reported to law enforcement. 

 

Step One: 1-3 days ASD; Friday School; or ISS; and parent conference. 

Step Two: 3-10 days OSS parent conference. 

Step Three: 10-90 days OSS; possible expulsion. 



  

 

 

BUS OR TRANSPORTATION MISCONDUCT (see Board policy JFCC and procedure JFCC-AP) (SEE ALSO 

RULES AND SAFETY REGULATIONS FOR PUPILS RIDING ON BUSES P.?)– Any offense committed by a student 

on transportation provided by or through the district shall be punished in the same manner as if the offense has been committed 

at the student’s assigned school. Transportation misconduct will be punished pursuant to policy and may include suspension of 

bus riding privileges. 

 

 
BEHAVIOR NOT COVERED - The school district reserves the right to pursue disciplinary or legal action for behavior 

that is subversive to good order and discipline in the schools even though such behavior is not specified in the preceding 

written rules. 

 



West Plains High School 

Recommendations for Teacher Handbook Changes 

May 7, 2012 

 

1. Remove Table of Contents 

2. Update Teacher Attendance and School Hours 
a. Change from 8:00 AM arrival time to 7:45 AM. 

b. Add statement that “Teachers who have morning duty should be here by 7:35 AM. 

3. Leaving School During the School Day 
a. Add “main” to the office that teachers should report to 

4. Absenteeism and Substitute Teachers 
a. Update contact information  

b. Teachers should have an emergency sub-packet that is provided to the Principal‟s Office 

prior to the first day of classes and is updated by the faculty member as circumstances 

require that the emergency packet is used.  The emergency packet should contain current 

materials, directions for use, directions for basic classroom expectations, pertinent notes 

regarding specific students, and classroom roster.  The materials should be educational in 

nature and should be filed in the High School office. Additionally, when scheduling an 

absence, all faculty are expectation to leave a substitute packet with the Principal‟s Office 

prior to being gone. The packet should contain all of the items listed in the emergency 

sub-packet. 

 

5. Teacher Parking 
a. Add “staff members will be issued a staff parking tag which should be displayed on the 

rearview mirror of your vehicle. 

b. Include “Career Center” to description of parking lot on Olden Street 

6. Teacher Lunch Break 
a. Change four, twenty-five minute lunch shifts to three, thirty minute lunch shifts 

7. Teacher Participation at School Events 
a. Change “provides each teacher a pass for all home games” to “admits all staff to home 

events when they display their current staff I.D. badge. 

8. Curriculum and Instruction  
a. Update section to match graduation requirements in student handbook 

9. Planning Period 
a. Clarify that the “main” office should be notified 

10. NEW SECTION:  RTI/Zizzer Time 
a. “Teachers are expected to be in their assigned areas during this time.  Core area teachers 

with a tutoring assignment are expected to be engaging those struggling students in 

various strategies designed to help the individual student.” 

11. Video use 
a. Add statement that “Teachers should send a permission slip home with each student in 

the class that will be shown the “R” rated video and that forms has been signed and 

returned by the parent or guardian.  In the event parent permission is not given, the 

student should be given an alternative assignment in another location during the viewing 

of the movie.” 

12. Improvement of Instruction 
a. Recommendation:  Remove entire section 

b. Current section: I.  TEACHER EVALUATION:  The professional staff will be evaluated 

in accordance with Board of Education Policy GCN.  The procedures for professional 

staff evaluation is modeled after the Missouri Performance Based Teacher Evaluation 

Program as required by policy, probationary teachers will be formally evaluated at least 

twice yearly, and tenured staff will be evaluated at least once every three years.  

 



1.  PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 

A.  Responsibilities:  The professional development committee shall work 

with beginning teachers and experienced teachers in identifying instructional concerns 

and remedies; assist beginning teachers with implementation of their professional 

development plan; serve as a confidential* consultant upon a teacher‟s request; arrange 

training programs for mentors; assess faculty needs, develop in-service opportunities for 

school staff; and present the coordinator of professional development activities with 

faculty suggestions, ideas and recommendations pertaining to classroom instruction 

within the school district. 

 

*NOTE:  Matters discussed by a teacher and the professional development committee 

will be held in confidence, but would not be considered “privileged information,” if 

someone is called upon to testify in court.  Only doctors, lawyers and clergy have a legal 

right to privileged information. 

 

B.  Structure:  The committee shall have no more than nine members with 

Membership on the committee spread across disciplines and attendance centers.  

Committee members shall be certificated staff members with at least three years of 

teaching experience and at least two years in the West Plains R-VII school district.  

Professional development committee members will be selected for three-year terms. 

Terms shall be staggered so that approximately one-third of the committee will be new 

each year. New members shall be selected no later than January 31
st
 annually, training 

will be accomplished by March 31
st
, and service will begin on April 1

st
. Committee 

members shall be selected by the classroom teachers, librarians and counselors of the 

district. Administrators may be selected to serve on the committee but may not participate 

in the selection process. 

 

C.  Assistance for New Faculty Members: In order to help beginning teachers polish 

their skills, improve their chances for success, and encourage them to stay in the 

profession the West Plains R-VII school district will provide a professional 

development plan for each faculty member who has no teaching experience. The 

plan will address the teacher‟s first two years in the classroom and the goals 

identified in the plan will relate to the evaluation criteria used by the district. Copies 

of the initial plan and all subsequent revisions shall be filed in the new teacher‟s 

building to be readily available to the teacher and mentor for review and updating. 

 

Beginning teachers will participate in an entry year mentor program and will be assigned 

a mentor who will initiate preparation of the beginning teacher‟s professional 

development plan and will help the teacher tailor the plan to his or her needs as soon as 

appropriate. 

 

Mentors must have five years of teaching experience and be willing to be trained as a 

mentor. The building principal will be responsible for selecting and placing mentors. 

 

The Superintendent or his/her designee will notify the appropriate college or universities 

when their graduates are hired. A coordinated plan for seminars and visitations for first 

and second year teachers will be developed by the district and higher education 

representatives. 

 

D.  ASSISTANCE FOR PRACTICING TEACHERS:  The district‟s professional 

development committee shall assess the in-service needs of practicing teachers 

annually. The committee shall select the assessment instrument. Once identified, 

faculty concerns and needs should be once identified, faculty concerns and needs 

should be categorized by areas such as building, grade level or subject, and the 

committee should prepare a recommendation for addressing the identified needs and 



improving classroom instruction in the district.  The professional development 

committee regularly evaluates the success of the district‟s in-service programs. 

 

A complete copy of the West Plains R-VII Professional Development Plan is available in the 

Principal‟s Office. 

 

2.  PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS:  Teachers who wish to attend professional meetings 

in their field which require time away from school must obtain prior approval from the 

building Principal or Director. Submit Preliminary Request for Approval (Form A).  PDC 

approves or disapproves the request based on the CSIP goals, high quality professional 

development, how the professional development opportunity fits into your professional 

development plan and/or improved student achievement.  In the event that the district 

agrees to compensate the teacher for expenses incurred, reimbursement requests should 

be submitted as early as possible to allow for processing time. Request for 

Reimbursement (Form B) must be completed and turned in to your PDC representative 

along with Form A and original receipts before reimbursements can be made.   If a 

request is submitted within 30 days of the event you should plan to cover all expenses on 

your own, and not assume that the request will be approved or reimbursed.  The 

Professional Development Committee reviews requests monthly.   

 

District and local teacher‟s meetings are considered the same as a regular school day and 

teachers should report same as a regular school day and teachers should report their 

absences to the principal. 

13. Faculty Meetings 
a. Remove phrase that teachers “will receive an agenda of items to be discussed in advance 

of the meeting, and” 

b. This policy still encourages faculty to “suggest items of significance to be placed on the 

agenda” 

14. Daily Announcements 
a. The time for daily announcements was changed from 8:10 AM daily to “at a time 

designated by the principal” 

15. Intercom 
a. Remove “In order to avoid unnecessary classroom disruptions and yet insure that students 

and teachers receive necessary information, the daily announcements will be read of the 

intercom at a time designated by the principal.  No other announcements will be read 

over „all-call‟ unless approved by the principal.” 

16. Telephone 
a. Add: “Telephones are provided in every classroom for teacher use.  Calls will not be 

forwarded from the office during class time unless it is an emergency 

b. Remove: “Teachers will not be called from class to accept phone calls unless it is an 

emergency. Rather, a message will be delivered to the teacher, in order that the call may 

be returned at a time when the teacher is not in class.” 

c. Amend “Teachers should not use cell phone during class time” to include “including text 

messaging” 

17. News Releases 
a. Remove: “are encouraged to utilize the Daily Quill and/or local radio stations” 

b. Add: “should call West Plains R-7 Communications Director Lana Snodgras at extension 

4500” 

18. Heating and Cooling 
a. Remove section 

b. Current policy: WPHS utilizes a “Demand Control System” to monitor the heating and 

cooling system(s). This computerized system controls our heating and cooling systems 

during periods of peak demand. Please insure that your thermostats are set at 75 degrees.  

The system will periodically turn your system off and then back on again.  In effect, you 



have no control over your cooling/heating during these periods. Report any problems to 

the office. 

19. Faculty Lounge/Workroom 
a. Remove statement “All refreshments should be consumed in the lounge and are not to the 

taken to the classroom at any time” 

20. Administration of Medication 
a. Remove criteria for administration 

b. Maintain statement that “Teachers should never administer medication to students.” 

21. Emergency Drills 
a. Add “(Lockdown)” next to “emergency alert drills” 

b. Remove: “The Emergency Alert Plan will include three codes: a) code red-life 

threatening b) code blue-intruder c) lockdown-non-emergency” 

22. Classroom Supervision 
a. Add “All guest speakers should be cleared a week in advance through the main office” 

23. Supervision at Assemblies 
a. Remove: “By dispersing through the crowd, teachers provide invaluable assistance in 

maintaining order” 

b. Add: “Teachers are expected to sit with their class and supervise their students.” 

24. Hall Supervision 
a. Change time to report to area from 8:00 AM to 7:45 AM 

25. Student Accounting/Attendance 
a. Remove section: I.  ATTENDANCE POLICY 

We know “regular attendance has a direct effect on the academic progress of the students and 

the development of good habits which will aid students as they move into the world beyond 

the district.”  Taking this into account, the West Plains High School and our staff members 

condensed the Attendance Policy and Procedures into the following important points. 

1. A student is responsible for arriving on time and being prepared to learn in every class. 

2. A student is responsible for clearing their excused absences with the attendance officer 

within two school business days.  You can call, fax or bring by notes to the attendance 

window located outside the downstairs office. 

3. A student whose absence is excused is responsible for making up assignments missed 

during the absence in the manner provided by the teacher. 

4. A student whose absence is unexcused will be responsible for making up the time missed 

in a manner determined by the school.  Examples of such discipline may include, but are 

not limited to Lunch Detention, In-School Suspension, Saturday School, Progressive 

discipline including potential Out-of-School Suspension for Insubordination. 

It is understood that on every occasion it is not necessary to see a physician and a short 

term illness may be documented by parent note in these cases.  Notes may be dropped off 

in the Attendance Office located in the downstairs office by the student when getting 

admit slips.  The Attendance Officer reserves the right to require licensed physician notes 

when deemed appropriate. 

Students Absence 

When a child must be absent from school the parent should call the Attendance Officer 

(downstairs office) on the morning of the absence.  Parents must follow up by calling 

daily if your child continues to be absent.  All absences will remain unexcused if the 

student fails to bring a note within two school business days or a parent has not called.  A 

parent may request homework assignments on the third day of a student‟s absence.  

Anytime a student comes in late or leaves school early they MUST sign in/out with the 

Attendance Officer.  Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action.   

    II.  Attendance Requirements for Course Credit 

Students will be permitted a maximum of eight (8) absences per class per semester.  It is 

important that students realize the eight (8) days of absence included excused and 

unexcused absences. A student who is absent for unacceptable reasons may be subject to 

disciplinary action.  Absences subsequent to the eight days may be made up during 



“Saturday School”.  Adequate opportunities for students to attend Saturday School are 

scheduled each semester.  If a student has 5 unexcused absences in a row a drop letter 

will be sent. 

To receive course credit, a student must complete passing work and be absent no more 

than eight (8) class periods during the semester.  Students who miss any one class more 

than eight (8) times during a semester will receive a grade of “N”.  Credit will not be 

awarded for courses in which an “N” grade is assigned.   

For the ninth and subsequent absences students will attend “Saturday School” to make up 

time missed and in order to receive credit for the semester.  Students will be assigned 

make-up day(s) for the first available “Saturday School” date.  Students are expected to 

attend the first scheduled date to prevent the student from running out of available 

“Saturday School” dates. 

On the Friday preceding the “Saturday School” students will obtain from the appropriate 

classroom teacher(s) their work assignment(s).  These assignments will be completed to 

the satisfaction of both the regular and the Saturday teachers.  Assignments to be 

completed will be listed on an assignment form in a clear and concise manner.  Students 

arriving to “Saturday School” without approved assignments will not be allowed to 

participate. 

Disruptive behavior will not be tolerated during “Saturday School” and disruptive 

students will be sent home with no credit.  Students who are tardy to “Saturday School” 

will not be allowed to participate.  “Saturday School” will follow the same schedule as a 

regular class day.  Students are responsible for bringing a sack lunch and will remain in 

the classroom to eat.  Students will remain in the classroom for the specified time.  

Breaks will be scheduled at the teacher‟s discretion. 

While students may make up individual class periods missed, they will make up these 

periods by arriving at the beginning of the “Saturday School” schedule and remaining 

until the appropriate number of periods have been made up.  “Saturday School” will 

begin at 8:30 am and end at 3:20 pm.  All students who choose to attend “Saturday 

School” must start at 8:30 am. 

If a student misses more days than available “Saturday School” dates will accommodate, 

the student may file an appeal for extenuating circumstances to be released from those 

days missed.  However, the student will have to attend all available days prior to the 

filing of the appeal.  The district attendance committee will review appeals at the end of 

each semester. 

III.  Attendance Appeals 

Student attendance appeals are made near the end of each semester.  An appeal 

preparation letter is sent to the parent/guardian explaining the appeal process.  An appeal 

form is given to the student.  The student returns the completed and signed appeal form to 

the attendance clerk on a specified date.  The attendance clerk contacts the 

parent/guardian to set up a meeting with the district attendance committee.  The appeal 

meeting is an opportunity for the student, parent and district attendance committee to 

discuss their student‟s attendance.   

IV.  Out-of-School Suspensions 

Students who are suspended out of school may be assigned to attend the Alternative 

Learning Center (ALC) during the term of their suspension.  Those students attending the 

ALC will have the opportunity to complete work missed due to their suspension.  Final 

approval for make-up work and attendance at the ALC will be at the discretion of the 

administration.  These provisions do not include those students under long-term 

suspension and/or expulsion.     

Suspended students are NOT allowed at school, on school grounds or at school-

sponsored activities during the term of their suspension.  Violation of this provision will 

be considered a separate offense (see Student Conduct Code).  

Out-of-School suspension is considered an unexcused absence.  

V.  Truancy 

Truancy is when a student; a) leaves the campus without permission from the office; b) 

comes to school but does not attend any or all classes; c) is somewhere other than at 



school when the parents think the student is at school; d) obtains permission from a 

teacher or the office to go to a certain place on campus, but does not go there; or e) brings 

a parent signed note that is forged or sets forth an invalid reason for the absence.  

Truancies are considered unexcused absences.  Disciplinary action will be taken per the 

Student Conduct Code when students are truant from school or class. 

VI.  School Activities 

School sponsored or sanctioned activities (i.e., field trips, interscholastic competition, 

etc.) are exempt from, and shall not count toward the total of eight absences.  Students 

who will be absent from class are expected to check with the teacher in advance to 

arrange for make-up work. 

Students not in attendance at school will not be permitted to attend or participate in any 

school-sponsored activity that night unless permission is obtained from the principal or 

assistant principal. 

VII.  Taking Students Out of Class 

Teachers should not cause a student to be absent from another teacher‟s class unless 

absolutely necessary.  Prior approval must be obtained from the teacher whose class will 

be missed in order for the absence to be exempted from the total of eight days.  

Otherwise, the absence shall count toward the total of eight days and be treated as a 

truancy. 

VIII.  Steps To Follow When Absent From School 

1. If the school has not contacted your parents, have parents write an excuse giving the 

dates and reasons for absence.  

2. If the school has contacted your parents, it is not necessary to bring a written excuse.  

However, all students must obtain an admission slip in the assistant principal‟s office 

immediately upon their return to school.  

3. Admission slips are to be picked up between 8 a.m. and 8:25 a.m.  Having to return 

to the office to obtain an admission slip will not be an acceptable reason to be tardy 

to class.  

4. Forgery of an excuse or parent signature will result in disciplinary action.  

IX.  Procedure For Leaving School Grounds 

Students are not permitted to leave school grounds while school is in session without first 

securing a Blue Slip from the Attendance Office. (SCCC students will have to secure 

Blue Slips from the SCCC office.)  Blue Slips will not be issued unless the request is 

accompanied by a telephone call and or a written request from the parent/guardian.  

Students should not ask to be excused during the day except in cases of extreme need or 

emergency. 

Students will not be permitted to leave school for errands, doctors, dentists, haircuts, etc. 

without a confirming phone call from a parent or guardian.  NO STUDENT WILL BE 

ALLOWED TO LEAVE SCHOOL TO EAT LUNCH UNLESS ACTUALLY PICKED 

UP BY A PARENT/GUARDIAN.  Students should sign out when departing campus and 

sign back in immediately upon return to campus if during the school day.  STUDENTS 

WHO LEAVE CAMPUS WITHOUT PROPERLY SIGNING OUT WILL BE 

CONSIDERED TRUANT. 

X.  Late Arrivals 

Students who arrive at school any time after first period begins, including between 

periods, MUST report to the Attendance Office.  Failure to do so will result in an 

unexcused absence or truancy.   

XI.  Make-Up Work 

Students are responsible for initiating and completing all class work to be made up when 

they have an absence.  The deadline for make-up work shall be equal to and not 

exceeding the time missed.  Test, term papers, notebooks, etc., which have been 

announced prior to the absence, are due on the day the student returns to school. 

XII.  Tardies:  A student is tardy for class if the student is not in the classroom when the 

tardy bell stops ringing.  Students entering the classroom late can be a serious disruption.  

Excessive tardiness is a serious problem.  Please do not tolerate unexcused tardiness to 

your class.  The teacher should emphasize the importance of the student being on time, 



and should begin class instruction promptly.  Most importantly, the teacher should be on 

time for class and enforce the tardy policy consistently. 

 

Students reporting to any class more than 5 minutes late, without a written excuse from 

school personnel, a teacher may request one (1) day Lunch Detention.  Lunch Detention 

requests should be entered via Lumen Discipline. 

Pursuant to the WPHS Student Handbook, the Assistant Principal‟s Office should be 

notified of all student tardies.  Tardies are tabulated throughout the quarter.  Teachers 

are to enter unexcused tardies on Lumen Attendance.   

26. Removing students from class 
a. Current: An alphabetical list of students who will be absent as a result of an authorized 

school activity should be placed in all teacher mailboxes two (2) days in advance of the 

scheduled event. 

b. Proposed: An alphabetical list of students who will be absent as a result of an authorized 

school activity should be emailed to all staff 24 hours in advance of the event. 

27. Admission of New Students 
a. Remove section 

b. Current policy:  XV.  Admission of New Students:  All new students are expected to 

report to the Counselor‟s Office for registration.  Do not admit a student to your class if 

they are not on your class roster unless they present an official documentation indicating 

enrollment in the class.  Notify the office or counselors of any such occurrence 

28. Student Withdrawal 
a. Remove section 

b. Current policy:  XVI. Student Withdrawel:  Students who are withdrawing from school 

must present to the teacher a “Withdrawal Form”, which is issued from the WPHS 

Counseling Office.  The teacher should enter a withdrawal grade on the form, which is 

the cumulative grade of the student at the time of withdrawal.  In addition, the teacher 

should initial the form to indicate that textbooks and other school issued instructional 

items have been returned.  In the event that textbooks or other items are not returned, this 

should be noted on the form.  Once the teacher has completed the withdrawal form, the 

student may be dropped from the class rolls. 

29. Students Leaving Campus 
a. Remove section 

b. Current policy: XVII.  Students Leaving Campus:  Students leaving campus must sign 

out and be issued a “blue slip” in the Assistant Principal‟s office.  Normally, a note or 

phone call from the parent or guardian is required.  The downstairs office personnel may 

call students to blue slip.  Teachers are discouraged from sending students off-campus to 

run errands.  If absolutely necessary proper authorization should be secured from the 

Assistant Principal‟s office. 

30. Truancy 
a. Remove section 

b. Current policy: XVIII.  Truancy:  Students are considered truant when: they are absent 

without the knowledge of parents; leave the school campus without permission; or are in 

one location on campus when they are scheduled to be in another.  Accurate attendance is 

the primary method for identification of students who “cut class”.  If you suspect a 

student is “cutting class”, notify the Assistant Principal‟s office. 

31. Grading System 
a. Add “Progress reports will be distributed every three weeks” 

b. Add “Cumulative semester grades will be issued and mailed home at the close of each 

semester. Remember, grades are posted on a student‟s transcript at the end of each 

semester.  The semester grade reflects the total points accumulated over the course of a 

semester” 

32. Progress Reports 
a. Remove section 



b. Current policy:  III.  PROGRESS REPORTS:  Written reports on individual student 

progressmay be requested by parents/guardians in order to monitor the student‟s progress 

in a given class.  Parents are encouraged to contact the teacher during this or her planning 

period if more frequent feedback is desired. 

Reports are due no later than three days following the request.  Exceptions are internal 

reports requested for the purpose of preparing for parent conferences or other meetings.  

Request for reports are coordinated by the counseling office.  Teachers are reminded that 

the reports are mailed home; therefore, they should be complete and professionally 

written. 

33. Student Recognition 
a. Remove “has a student card program (Renaissance), which” 

b. Revised policy will read “In order to provide recognition to students for their academic 

achievements, West Plains High School awards academic letters and provides incentives 

for academic achievement.  Criteria for these awards may be found in the WPHS Student 

Handbook.  Teachers are encouraged to make positive contacts with the parents of their 

students.” 

34. Field Trips 
a. Current policy: FIELD TRIPS:  Teachers may schedule field trips that are relevant to the 

curriculum with approval from the principal at least two weeks in advance. may schedule 

field trips that have been taken during past years with the Asst. Principal.  Buses for 

approved trips should be ordered through the Asst. Principal‟s office.  Bus orders must be 

received by Wednesday morning for trips the following week.  If a teacher‟s field trip 

removes students from class, an alphabetical list of students should be placed in all 

mailboxes at least two days in advance of the trip.  All students who miss class for 

school-approved activities are required to make arrangements for make up work prior to 

the absence. 

b. Revised Policy: FIELD TRIPS:  Teachers may schedule field trips that are relevant to the 

curriculum with approval from the principal at least two weeks in advance. Approval 

must be secured from the Principal for any “new trips”.  Buses for approved trips should 

be ordered through the Asst. Principal‟s office.  Bus orders must be received by 

Wednesday morning for trips the following week. 

35. Dances 
a. Current policy: III. DANCES:  There are three (3) dances each school year at WPHS that 

are considered traditional, and as such are built into the yearly school calendar.  They are:  

1.  Back-to-School Dance 2.  Homecoming 3.  Mid-Winter  4.  Spring Dance and 5.  

Prom.  The requirements for all other dances are as follows: 

Approval by the Principal, Date secured on the WPHS Calendar through Asst. Principal, 

Security:  The sponsoring organization is responsible for paying for four (4) reserve 

officers for each dance, The Asst. Principal makes arrangements for security. All dances 

must have a sponsoring student organization, faculty sponsor, and administrative 

supervision. Student dates must be in high school and less than 21 years old.  Prom dates 

must be of junior or senior status and less than 21. 

b. Revised policy: III. DANCES:  There are five (5) dances each school year at WPHS that 

are considered traditional, and as such are built into the yearly school calendar.  They are:  

1.  Homecoming 2.  Mid-Winter  and 3.  Prom.   

36. Fundraising 
a. Add “All fund raising money should be turned in daily.” 

 



SCCC Secondary Handbook  
Proposed Revisions 

2012-13 
 

 Update:   
1.   Administrators and Staff listed ( pg 2) 

 Mr. Jim Laughary-Director 
Mrs. Brenda Smith- Adult Director 
Mrs. Joan Wright, Counselor /Student Services 

2. Campus and Program Locations – (pg 2)delete:  120 N. Howell Street   add:  407 West 
Thornburgh 

3. Daily Bell Schedule – (pg 3) 
1st Period – 8:10-8:55 
2nd Period – 9:00-9:45 
3rd Period – 9:50 – 10:35 

    “A” Lunch Group 
 
  Lunch   10:40 – 11:10 (30 minutes) 
  4th Period (45 min) 11:15 – 12:00 
  5th Period (50 min) 12:05 – 12:55 
 
   “B” Lunch Group 
 
  4th Period (45 min) 10:40 – 11:25 
  Lunch   11:30 – 12:00 (30 minutes) 
  5th Period (50 min) 12:05 – 12:55 
 
   “C” Lunch Group 
 
  4th Period (45 min) 10:40 – 11:25 
  5th Period (50 min) 11:30 – 12:20 
  Lunch   12:25 – 12:55 (30 minutes) 
 

6th Period  1:00 – 1:45 
 

7th Period  1:50 – 2:35 
 

“Zizzer Time”  2:40 – 3:25 
 

4. Designated ADA and Section 504 compliance coordinator (pg 10):  delete Connie 
Pendergrass   add:  Karen Sholes 

5. Designated contact for Title IX and Section  504 inquiries (pg 10):  delete Connie 
Pendergrass   add:  Karen Sholes 

6. Additional changes to align student conduct with West Plains High School proposed 
revisions will be made following approval.   

 



South Central Career Center 

Adult Handbook Revision Recommendations 

May 2012 

 

1) Update contact information 

 

2) Update staff listing 

 

3) Update physical locations and school hours to match new schedule 

a. Current policy:  Postsecondary (adult full-time students) will generally start at 8:15 AM 

and end the day at 2:15 PM unless otherwise specified.  Classes may commence at 

various times during the day. 

b. Proposed policy:  Postsecondary (adult full-time students) will generally start at 9:00 AM 

and end the day at 3:00 PM unless otherwise specified.  Individual classes may 

commence at various times during the day.  Specific information is available from the 

SCCC office 

 

4) Update Completion/Graduate Information to include 2011-2012 statistics 

 

5) Change wording to Financial Aid section for better readability—no substantive change 

proposed; only stylistic. 

 

6) Include 150% rule to Certificate section 

a. Add: “A student must complete the entire program within one and one-half times the 

expected completion time (150%).” 

 

7) Amend Attendance Policy 

a. Current policy: Regular attendance is required. 

1. Students may be eligible to have up to 10% of the hours in a program per period as 

excused absences. In a 900-hour program, this would equate to 45 hours of instruction 

per half. 

2. An excused absence is considered one that is unforeseeable, unavoidable, and/or 

unusual. Examples may include: illness, disability, hospitalization, funeral, or religious 

observances. Each excused absence will require documentation to the main office prior to 

approval. 

3. Students must make up ALL unexcused absences. 

4. More than eight (8) excused absences per half of course the student must: 

A. Make-up additional time with documentation required. Make-up time must be 

completed during the same half of student’s course in which the absence occurred. 

EXAMPLE – Terry is enrolled in a program of study that consists of 900 clock hours. 

Terry’s program is divided into two halves, each containing 450 clock hours of study. 

During the first half of her program, Terry is involved in an accident and misses 12 days 

of school. With the proper documentation, eight of those days can be approved as 

excused by the office. Terry must make up four days of school prior to completion of the 

450
th
 clock hour of her program. 

B. The student is responsible for making arrangements for make-up time and completing 

the documentation. Attendance forms are available at www.scccwp.org or at the SCCC 

Main Office and should be turned in to your instructor. 

5. In the event of inclement weather on a scheduled day, SCCC may, at its sole 

discretion, designate the day as an excused absence. All allotted excused absences per 

half may be utilized according to this rule. 



6. This policy represents the minimum standard of South Central Career Center. 

Programs and instructors may establish expectations that exceed this standard. Any 

changes to this policy by a program or instructor must be on file in the main office and 

established in the program handbookor course syllabus and distributed at the beginning of 

the program. 

 

b. Recommended policy: Regular attendance is required. 

1. Students may be eligible to have up to 10% of the hours in a program per period as 

excused absences. In a 900-hour program, this would equate to 45 hours of instruction 

per half. 

2. An excused absence is considered one that is unforeseeable, unavoidable, and/or 

unusual. Examples may include: illness, disability, hospitalization, funeral, or religious 

observances. Each excused absence will require documentation to the main office prior to 

approval. 

3. Students must make up ALL unexcused absences. 

4. More than 10% excused absences per half of course the student must: 

A. Make-up additional time with documentation required. Make-up time must be 

completed during the same half of student’s course in which the absence occurred. 

EXAMPLE – Terry is enrolled in a program of study that consists of 900 clock hours. 

Terry’s program is divided into two halves, each containing 450 clock hours of study. 

During the first half of her program, Terry is involved in an accident and misses 62 hours 

of school. With the proper documentation, 45 of those days can be approved as excused 

by the office. Terry must make up 17 hours of school prior to completion of the 450
th
 

clock hour of her program. 

B. The student is responsible for making arrangements for make-up time and completing 

the documentation. Attendance forms are available at www.scccwp.edu or at the SCCC 

Main Office and should be turned in to your instructor. 

5. In the event of inclement weather on a scheduled day, SCCC may, at its sole 

discretion, designate the day as an excused absence. All allotted excused absences per 

half may be utilized according to this rule. 

6. This policy represents the minimum standard of South Central Career Center. 

Programs and instructors may establish expectations that exceed this standard. Any 

changes to this policy by a program or instructor must be on file in the main office and 

established in the program handbookor course syllabus and distributed at the beginning of 

the program. 

EXCESSIVE ABSENCES:  Any student who (without PRIOR arrangements through 

SCCC administration) misses five consecutive days or exceeds 20% of the program hours 

per payment period will be dismissed from the program. The “20% Rule” takes both 

excused and unexcused absences into consideration.   

 

8) Amend Admissions Policy by removing statement regarding Ability-to-Benefit test 

 

9) Remove Ability-to-Benefit Criteria section 

 

10) Amend the Alcohol and Drug Abuse section 

a. Add statement “any property adjacent to South Central Career Center as determined by 

the administration and applicable state and federal law.” 

b. At the end of the section, add “More information and a list of resources is available at 

www.scccwp.edu.  

 

http://www.scccwp.edu/


11) Update Campus Crime Reporting section to include a current list of reportable offenses 

under the Clery Act.  

 

12) Combine two sections on Dismissal into one Student Dismissal section 

a. Current separate policies: Dismissal: Any student committing an action, which could be 

considered a misdemeanor or felony, including, but not limited to, assault, stealing, drug 

possession, or being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol may be expelled 

immediately.  Dismissal: A student may be dismissed from school for unsatisfactory 

conduct, excessive absences, unsatisfactory academic progress or violation of other 

guidelines concerning student behavior. A dismissed student may apply for re-admission 

at the beginning of the next school term. Re-admission will be decided by the 

Termination/Retention Committee. 

b. Recommended policy: Student Dismissal: A student may be dismissed from South 

Central Career Center for unsatisfactory conduct, excessive absences, unsatisfactory 

academic progress or violation of other guidelines concerning student behavior. A 

dismissed student may apply for re-admission at the beginning of the next school term. 

Re-admission will be decided by the Termination/Retention Committee. Additionally, 

any student committing an action, which could be considered a misdemeanor or felony, 

including, but not limited to, assault, stealing, drug possession, or being under the 

influence of illegal drugs or alcohol may be expelled immediately. 

 

 


	1A  Board Packet Title Page
	2A  Agenda for May 15-12
	2B  KTBI 5-15-12b
	3A1  Board Minutes April 17 2012 Reorganization
	3A2  Minutes April 17 2012 Open
	3B1  2012 May Warrant Sheet
	3B2
	3CA  Grand Finance Report 5-10-12
	3D  Early Childhood Program Evaluation 2012
	3E1  Employment
	3E2  recommend to hire memo- Jeremy Whittingham
	3E3 Recommendation for hire - formal - Andrew Hanson
	3E3 recommendation form Adrew Hanson
	3EA  Brittany Osborn Middle School Custodial Recommendation for hire
	4D1  Salary Schedule - 2013-14 revised
	4D2 Salary Schedule - 2013-14 Non-degreed vocational
	L1  Handbook Changes Title Page
	LB  2012-2013 MS Hanbook Changes
	LB2 Middle School Staff Handbook Revisions 2012
	LC  12-13 Recommended Revisions Student handbook
	LC2  2012-2013 HS  Teacher Handbook
	LD SCCC 2012-13 Secondary Handbook Proposed Revisions
	LE  2012-2013 Adult Handbook Revisions (2)
	X1  BR Title Page
	XA  KTBI 5-15-12
	XB  Admin  Report 5-9-2012
	XD  J Board Report  2012 May
	XE  Owings - Board Report 05-09-2012
	XF  MayBoardReport2012
	XG  S. Smith MS Admin Report 5-9-12
	XH  High School May 2012 Board Report
	XI  SCCC May Board Report. 2012. B. Smith
	XJ  board report may, 2012 Karen Sholes
	Z1  Aid Thank You



